F

) 1

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY BOARD AGENDA
Thursday, January 21, 2016

Time: 8:00 a.m.
Place: 55 International Drive, Pease International Tradeport

Portsmouth, New Hampshire

AGENDA
L. Call to Order
II. Acceptance of Meeting Minutes: December 17, 2015*
II1. Public Comment
IV.  Old Business
V. Finance
A. Financial Reports
L. Operating Result for Five Month Period Ending November 30, 2015%
o Nine Month Cash Flow Projections to September 30, 2016*
VI.  Licenses/Easements/Rights of Way/Options
A. Approvals
1. AMEC Foster Wheeler — 35 Airline Avenue* (Allard)
VII.  Leases
A. Reports
1. 200 International, LP*
2. Two International Group, LLC*
VIII.  Signs
A. Approvals
L, Wheelabrator Technologies, Inc.— 100 Arboretum Drive* (Torr)
IX.  Contracts/Agreements

A. Reports*

1. Vanasse, Hangen & Brustlin, Inc. — Traffic Counts
2. Northeast Hydraulics, Inc. — Hydraulic Sander

3. Donovan Equipment Co., Inc. — Steel Plow

4, Golf Course — Toro NSN Service Contract

B. Approvals

IDMS - FAA Grant Acceptance/Contract Award* (Bohenko)
Vanasse, Hangen & Brustlin, Inc. — Contract Extension* (Lamson)
USDA /WS Wildlife Control* (Loughlin)

PSM Terminal Bathrooms — Design* (Preston)

Electricity Service Provider* (Bohenko)

Liberty Chevrolet — Electrician’s Van* (Loughlin)

A i M






XL

XIL

XIII.

XIV.

XV.

XVL

XVIL

%%
dokk

B+

1 )
Executive Director’s Reports/Approvals

A. Reports :
L; Golf Course Operations
2 Airport Operations
a) PSM

b) Skyhaven Airport
(D FAA MOA —Navigational and Weather Aids* (Torr)
(2) Right of Entry — New England Aerobatic Club* (Allard)
c) Noise Line Report*

Division of Ports and Harbors

A. Reports
l. Port Advisory Council
2. Commercial Mooring Transfers*

Special Events
A. Report*
L. New Heights — Paddy’s Five Miler Road Race

New Business

Upcoming Meetings

Finance Committee March 14, 2016 Cancelled

Board of Directors March 17,2016 Cancelled

Port Committee March 17,2016 555 Market St
Audit Committee April 18, 2016

Board of Directors April 21,2016 9 am. -1 p.m.

(To include budget review — lunch
will be provided)

All Meetings begin at 8 a.m. unless otherwise posted.
Directors’ Comments
Adjournment

Press Questions

Related Materials Attached

Related Materials Previously Sent

Related Materials will be provided under separate cover
Materials to be distributed at Board Meeting
Confidential Materials






PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY Thursday, December 17,2015

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING ANNUAL MEETING

MINUTES '

Presiding: George M. Bald, Chairman

Present: Robert A. Allard, Treasurer; John P. Bohenko; Margaret F. Lamson; Peter J. Loughlin,

Vice Chairman; Robert F, Preston; and Franklin G. Torr
Attending: David R. Mullen, PDA Executive Director; Lynn Marie Hinchee, PDA Deputy
Director/General Counsel; PDA staff members; and members of the public;

I. Call to Order

Chairman Bald called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m. in the Board conference room at 55
International Drive, Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth, New Hampshire.

II. Acceptance of Meeting Minutes: November 19, 2015

Director Lamson moved and Director Allard seconded that The Pease Development Authority
Board of Directors hereby accept the Minutes of the November 19, 2015 Board meeting. Discussion:
None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried. Note: Director Bohenko arrived at
9:35 am.

I1I. Employee Recognitions

David Mullen, Executive Director, and Tanya Coppeta, Employee Relations Manager, recognized
the following PDA employees for their years of service:

10 Years (clock)

Ron Jodz Finance Department

Lana LaRochelle Division of Ports and Harbors
Grant Nichols Division of Ports and Harbors

15 Year (certificate and $50 bill)
Bob Oxx Maintenance Department
Johnnie Joplin Maintenance Department

20 Years (certificate, name entered on PDA plaque and $100 bill)

Andrew Pomeroy Airport Operations

Geno Marconi Division of Ports and Harbors
Al Norton Maintenance Department

Ed McLaughlin Maintenance Department

Ms. Coppeta commended PDA employees on their service longevity. Chairman Bald thanked all
employees for their commitment and service to PDA and noted that the Tradeport is considered the best
base closure transformation in the United States, which is due in large part to the PDA employees.

1V. Public Comment

There were no comments from the public.

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors December 17, 2015 Page 1






V. Old Business
A. Approvals
1. Pioneer New Hampshire, LLC — Lease Amendment

Director Allard moved and Director Torr seconded that The Pease Development Authority
Board of Directors hereby approves of and authorizes the Executive Director to execute Lease
Amendment No, 2 to the Pioneer New Hampshire LL.C Lease for the Premises located at 108 - 114
Corporate Drive to permit “Health Clubs” as an additional use; all in accordance with PDA’s Land
Use Controls Section 303.05(b)(18) and the memorandum of Mark H. Gardner, PDA Deputy
General Counsel dated December 4, 2015 attached hereto. Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved
by unanimous vote for; motion carried.

2. 25, 29 Retail LLC

Director Bohenko moved and Director Allard seconded that The Pease Development Authority
Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director to enter into a lease amendment with
25, 29 Retail, LLC to drop the requirement to pay Building Area Rent on the vacant 26 Manchester
Square facility retroactive to June 30, 2015 and to transition to the payment of Ground Area Rent
on the entirety of 25, 29 Retail, LL.C’s leased premises effective July 1, 2015, subject however to the
following conditions:

1.) The demolition of the 26 Manchester Square and 29 New Hampshire Avenue
facilities and, 2.) the merger of the 26 Manchester Square property with the 25, 29
Retail, LLC property both to be completed in accordance within the time frames set
forth in the correspondence of Attorney John Lyons dated December 11, 2015 and all
other wise in accordance with memorandum of David R. Mullen, Executive Director
dated December 11, 2015 which letter and memo are attached hereto.

Discussion: Mr. Mullen reported that as part of the 25, 29 Retail LLC Lease Agreement, HCA
was scheduled to move from 26 Manchester Square to 25 New Hampshire Avenue. The amendment
removes the penalty for HCA staying in 26 Manchester Square past the agreed vacancy date due to
unforeseen circumstances. The 26 Manchester Square building and the 29 New Hampshire Avenue
building will be demolished at the same time. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion
carried.

VL Finance
A, Financial Reports
1. Operating Results for the Four Month Period Ending October 31, 2015

Irv Canner, PDA Director of Finance, reported on the status of the PDA FY 2016 finances for the
four month period ending October 31, 2015. Operating revenues are over budget for the period by
approximately 1.5%. Operating expenses remained under budget. Utilities are over budget for the period
due, in part, to a City water bill; and professional services are under budget. Fuel sales including the
Division of Ports and Harbors (“DPH”) facilities, are below budget in both revenues and expenses. Net
operating income for the period is approximately $1.8 million. Mr. Canner reviewed sources of revenues
including facility rentals and golf course fees. Staffing numbers have reduced due to changes in the
number of seasonal employees and the organizational chart contains two open positions. Electricity
consumption is in line with the budget and staff continues to review electric services provider rates to find
the best rates. Since June, the Balance Sheet shows a reduction in cash of $425,000 due, in part, to
repayment of the revolving line of credit. PDA expects to draw $1.0 million from the line on credit on
December 18. Mr. Canner reviewed how the increase in the Federal Reserve interest rate will affect

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors December 17, 2015 Page 2






PDA’s cost of borrowing, Mr. Canner reviewed grant funded and non-grant funded projects. The
Business Units Analysis showed that there were 38,729 enplanements at the Portsmouth International
Airport at Pease as of 11/30/15; revenues at Skyhaven Airport are ahead of budget due to increased fuel
sales; rounds played at the Golf Course exceeded 50,000 rounds for the season with non-member rounds
equal to approximately 70% of rounds played. Grill 28 bar and grill sales continue to exceed sales from
the same period last year. The Statement of Net Position shows that there is no change in the pension
liability and PDA’s overall net deficit has improved since June 30, 2015. The operating deficit at DPH
has also improved since June 30, 2015.

2 Nine Month Cash Flow Projections to August 31, 2016

Mr. Canner reviewed PDA cash flow projections for the nine month period ending August 31,
2016. PDA anticipates drawing $1.0 million from the Revolving Line of Credit in December and pay it
off by the end of March, 2016. The $5.0 million line of credit expires in December, 2016 and staff is
reviewing PDA’s upcoming financial requirements to determine if the line of credit needs to be renewed.
Mr. Canner reviewed the capital projects, including $1.3 million in grant funded projects and $2.8 million
in non-grant funded projects. Mr. Canner reviewed the cash flow at DPH and the effect of 2016 mooring
permit revenues.

VII. Licenses/Easements/Rights of Way/Options
A. Approvals
1. Lonza Biologics, Inc. — 14 Aviation Avenue Parking

Director Lamson moved and Director Preston seconded that The Pease Development Board of
Directors authorizes the Executive Director to execute a License Agreement with Lonza Biologics,
Inc. (“Lonza”) for the use of the parking area at 14 Aviation Avenue for Lonza employee parking.
The License is for the period of January 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017; on substantially similar
terms and conditions as set forth in the draft License attached hereto. Discussion: None. Disposition:
Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.

2, Lonza Biologics, Inc. - 55 International Drive Parking

Director Loughlin moved and Director Torr seconded that The Pease Development Board of
Directors authorizes the Executive Director to execute License Agreement Amendment No. 4 with
Lonza Biologics, Inc. for the use of a portion of the parking area adjacent to 55 International Drive
to extend the term of the License for a period of one (1) year from November 1, 2015 through
October 31, 2016. Additionally, the Board approves a) the increase in the parking area square
footage to include approximately 99 parking spaces (an increase of 12 spaces); and b) the increase
of the License fee to $866.22 per month made retroactive to December 9, 2015; and all in
accordance with the memorandum of David R. Mullen, Executive Director, dated December 8, 2015

attached hereto.

This motion supersedes the authorization for License Amendment No. 4 granted by the Board on
October 15, 2015, Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.

3. UNH Professional Development — Wetlands Education

Director Preston moved and Director Allard seconded that The Pease Development Authority
Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director to execute a Right of Entry with UNH
Professional Development & Training from January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016, for the
purpose of conducting wetland education classes on various areas on the Tradeport; on

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors December 17, 2015 Page 3






substantially the same terms and conditions set forth in the Right of Entry dated December 18,
2015 and attached hereto. Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion
carried.

4, Portsmouth Naval Shipyard — Emergency Vehicle Training

Director Torr moved and Director Loughlin seconded that The Pease Development Authority
Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director to execute a Right of Entry with
Portsmouth Naval Shipyard - Security TRASUP from January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016,
for the purpose of conducting emergency vehicle operator’s training course on a portion of the
North Apron; on substantially the same terms and conditions set forth in the Right of Entry dated
December 18, 2015 and attached hereto. Discussion: Director Lamson asked if there are any noise
issues when the training takes place. Mr. Mullen confirmed that PDA has not received any noise
complaints during past training sessions. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.

5. In Control Driving School — Right of Entry

Director Allard moved and Director Torr seconded that The Pease Development Authority
Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director to execute a Right of Entry with In
Control Family Foundation, Inc. from January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016, for the purpose
of conducting closed course, hands-on crash prevention training on a portion of the North Apron,
subject to FAA approval of the non-aviation use of the North Apron; and substantially on similar
terms and conditions set forth in the draft Right of Entry dated December 18, 2015 attached hereto.
Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.

VIII. Leases
A, Reports

In accordance with the “Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-sublease
Agreements”, Mr. Mullen reported on the following subleases:

1. Two International Group, LLC

Two International Group, LLC e}ltel'ed into a sublease with NRT New England, LLC dba
Coldwell Banker Residential Brokerage for 5,607 square feet at 2 International Drive for a base term of
five years. Director Lamson approved the sublease.

B. Approvals
1. 73 Corporate Drive at Pease, LL.C

Director Bohenko moved and Director Torr seconded that The Pease Development Authority
Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director to enter into a Lease Agreement with
73 Corporate Drive at Pease, LLC for the Premises located at 73 Corporate Drive and to:

1. With the concurrence of General Counsel, complete negotiations and to execute a
direct Lease Agreement with 73 Corporate, or its nominee, on substantially the terms and
conditions of the Hodges Sublease, and with such modifications including the Options as have been
set forth in the Memorandum from David R. Mullen, Executive Director, dated December 9, 2015,

attached hereto;

2, Complete negotiations and to approve execution of a Consent of Sublessor and

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors December 17, 2015 Page 4






Agreement concerning Assignment of the Sublease (“Consent”) by and between PDA, Hodges and
73 Corporate, or its nominee; and

3. Authorize and approve such other action(s) and the execution of such other
document(s) as the Executive Director and General Counsel deem necessary or advisable to
facilitate the implementation of the transaction contemplated in said Memorandum. Discussion:
None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.

IX. Signs
A, Reports
1. HAVEN — 20 International Drive

In accordance with the "Delegation to Building Inspector: Consent and Approval of Minor
Revisions to Existing Signs", Mr. Mullen reported that PDA approved of the modification to exterior sign
at 20 International Drive to insert the name of HAVEN, a new subtenant at 20 International Drive.
Director Loughlin approved the sign modifications.

X. Contracts/Agreements
A, Approvals
1. Cross Insurance — Policy Renewals

Director Lamson moved and Director Preston seconded that The Pease Development Authority
Board of Directors authorizes the Executive Director to accept and bind insurance coverages for
the Pease Development Authority to be provided by Cross Insurance Agency for the period of
12/31/15 through 12/31/16 in the projected amount of $161,467.53; all in accordance with the
Premium Summary and 2015 - 2016 Insurance Proposal attached hereto. Discussion: None.
Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.

2. Airport Planning and Engineering Consultants

Director Preston moved and Director Loughlin seconded that The Pease Development Board of
Directors authorizes the Executive Director to execute contracts for the provision of Airport
Planning and Engineering Services with:

a) Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc.;
b) Hoyle Tanner & Associates, Inc.; and
c) McFarland-Johnson, Inc.

Each contract is for a period of three (3) years with one (1) additional two (2) year option
period exercisable at the Executive Director’s sole discretion; and all in accordance of the
memorandum of Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Manager - Engineering, dated December 9, 2015attached
hereto. Discussion: Director Lamson complimented Maria Stowell and Bill Hopper for their explanation
of the selection process. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.

3. Airport Terminal — Engineering Services/Materials Survey

Director Loughlin moved and Director Lamson seconded that The Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director to enter into contracts with:

1. H. L. Turner Group, PDA's on-call architectural engineering consultant, in an
amount not to exceed $33,900; and

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors December 17, 2015 Page 5






2. RPF Environmental, Inc. (RPF) in an amount not to exceed $12,600;

for engineering services for improvements to the PSM Airport Terminal building; all in accordance
with the terms and conditions set forth in the memorandum from Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Manager -
Engineering dated December 9, 2015 attached hereto.

In accordance, with the provisions of RSA 12-G:8, VIII the Board waives the RFP
requirement for RPF based upon the following justification:

1. RPF is a vendor selected by the State of New Hampshire in accordance with its
procurement regulations.

Note: This motion requires 5 affirmative votes. Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by
unanimous roll call vote for; motion carried.

4. Twinns Janitorial

Director Torr moved and Director Preston seconded that The Pease Development Authority
Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director to enter into a Contract with Twinns
Janitorial (“Twinns”) of Dover, NH for janitorial services at PDA facilities for a period of three (3)
years with two (2) one (1) year options exercisable at the sole discretion of the Executive Director;
all in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the memorandum from Maria J.
Stowell, P.E., Manager - Engineering dated December 9, 2015 attached hereto.

In accordance, with the provisions of RSA 12-G:8, VIII the Board waives the RFP
requirement based upon the following justification:

1. Twinns is a vendor selected by the State of New Hampshire in accordance  with
its procurement regulations,

Note: This motion requires 5 affirmative votes. Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by
unanimous roll call vote for; motion carried.

5. Loader Ramp Plow

Director Lamson moved and Director Loughlin seconded that The Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director to enter into a contract with
Chadwick-Baross, Inc. of Concord, NH, and to expend funds in a total amount not to exceed
$21,900 for the purchase of one 2015 Loader Ramp Plow for use by the PDA Maintenance; all in
accordance with the memorandum from Joseph W. McPherson, Facilities Resource Manager,
dated December 9, 2015 and attached hereto. Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous
vote for; motion carried.

6. Runway Deicer — Solid

Director Lamson moved and Director Allard seconded that The Pease Development Authority
Board of Directors hereby approves and authorizes the Executive Director to execute a contract
with Nachurs Alpine Solutions Industrial of Marion, OH, for the purpose of purchasing sodium
formate based runway deicing solid at the price of $0.708 per pound for a period of one (1) year
beginning December 1, 2015; all otherwise in accordance with the memorandum of K, William
Hopper, Airport Manager, dated December 8, 2015 attached hereto. Discussion: Director Lamson

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors December 17, 2015 Page 6






confirmed that Nachurs previously provided products to PDA. Director Bohenko inquired about how
much product was used last year. Director Allard confirmed that PDA paid $.74 per pound last year.
Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.

7. Runway Deicer — Liquid

Director Preston moved and Director Torr seconded that The Pease Development Authority
Board of Directors hereby approves and authorizes the Executive Director to execute a contract
with Nachurs Alpine Solutions Industrial of Marion, OH, for the purpose of purchasing potassium
acetate based runway deicing liquid at a price of $4.605 per gallon for a period of one (1) year
beginning December 1, 2015; all otherwise in accordance with the memorandum of K. William
Hopper, Airport Manager, dated December 8, 2015, attached hereto. Discussion: None. Disposition:
Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.

8. FAA Approved Runway Sand

Director Bohenko moved and Director Lamson seconded that The Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors approves and authorizes the Executive Director to execute a contract
with Holliston Sand & Gravel (“Holliston”) of Slatersville, RI, for the period of December 1, 2015
through May 31, 2016 for the purpose of providing FAA approved runway sand for the Airport
runways at the price of $94.03 per ton; in accordance with the memo from K. William Hopper,
Airport Manager, dated December 10, 2015, attached hereto.

In accordance, with the provisions of RSA 12-G:8, VIII the Board waives the RFP
requirement based upon the following justification:

1. No bids were submitted in response to the advertisement for bids;
2. Only FAA approved runway sand may be used on the runways;
3. Holliston has provided FAA approved runway sand to the PDA continually since

December, 2009 and can provide PDA with sand for the upcoming winter season.

Note: This motion requires 5 affirmative votes. Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by
unanimous roll call vote for; motion carried.

XI. Executive Director’s Reports/Approvals
A. Reports
1. PDA Holiday Schedule

Chairman Bald reported that PDA employees will observe the following holidays in 2016:

New Year’s Day Friday January 1, 2016
Martin Luther King/Civil Rights Day Monday January 18, 2016
Presidents’ Day Monday February 15, 2016
Memorial Day (Observed) Monday May 30, 2016
Independence Day Monday July 4, 2016

Labor Day Monday September 5, 2016
Columbus Day (Observed) Monday October 10, 2016
Veterans’ Day Friday November 11, 2016
Thanksgiving Thursday November 24, 2016

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors December 17, 2015 Page 7






Day after Thanksgiving Friday November 25, 2016
Christmas Day (Observed) Monday December 26, 2016

Mr. Mullen informed the Board that qualified employees are also eligible to take one floating
holiday per year.

2. Elections

Mr. Mullen informed the Board that in accordance with Article 111, Section 3.4 of the PDA By-
Laws, the Vice Chairman and Treasurer for 2015 need to be elected:

A.  Vice Chairman

Director Bohenko moved the motion and Director Preston seconded that Peter Loughlin be elected as
Vice-Chairman of the Pease Development Authority. Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by
unanimous vote: motion carried.

B. Treasurer

Director Lamson moved the motion and Director Torr seconded that Robert Allard be elected
as Treasurer of the Pease Development Authority. Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by
unanimous vote: motion carried.

3. Committee Appointments

Chairman Bald appointed Directors to the following Committees:

Standing Committees

Executive Committee Marketing and Economic Development Committee
George Bald, Chair Peter Loughlin, Chair

Peter Loughlin. Vice Chairman Robert Preston

Robert Allard, Treasurer Frank Torr

Staff Contact: Mullen/Hinchee Staff Contact: Mullen

Finance Committee Zoning Adjustment & Appeals Committee

Robert Allard, Chair Frank Torr, Chair

John Bohenko Peter Loughlin

Margaret Lamson George Bald

Staff Contact: Mullen/Canner Staff Contact: Hinchee/Stowell

Airport Committee

Robert Preston, Chair

Robert Allard

Margaret Lamson

Staff Contact: Hopper/Stowell

Ad Hoc Advisory Committees

Capital Improvement and
Land Planning Committee Transportation Management Committee

Peter Loughlin, Chair Margaret Lamson, Chair

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors December 17, 2015 Page 8






Robert Allard

Frank Torr

George Bald

Staff Contact: Hinchee/Stowell

Golf Committee

John Bohenko, Chair

Robert Allard

Robert Preston

Staff Contact: Mullen/DeVito
Staff Contact: Mullen/Marconi

Audit Committee
John Bohenko, Chair
Peter Loughlin
Robert Preston

Staff Contact: Canner

John Bohenko
Frank Torr
Staff Contact: Stowell

Port Committee

Peter Loughlin, Chair

Frank Torr

John Bohenko

Ex Officio: Chair DPH Advisory Council

Legal Bill Review
George Bald, Chair
Peter Loughlin

Frank Torr

Staff Contact: Hinchee

4, Golf Course Operations

Scott DeVito, PGA General Manager, reported on the activities at the Pease Golf Course. The
new Golf Course website was launched. Advertisements including e-mail blasts and newspaper ads were
put out to notify the public of the website. The Golf Course officially closed on November 30" with
approximately 52,110 rounds of golf played. The Golf Course Maintenance staff is putting the course to
bed for the winter. Mr. DeVito thanked the Golf Course Maintenance staff for a great season. Mr. DeVito
recognized Tim Riese, Assistant Pro, for his recognition at the Junior Leader of the Year by the NH PGA
chapter. Mr. Riese runs junior clinics at Pease, works with the Portsmouth Recreation Department, and
ran a PGA Junior League in 2015. In response to Director Allard, Mr. DeVito reported that in a good
weather season, the Golf Course could handle 55,000 rounds of golf. Director Preston commended the
Golf Course staff for the use of the website and internet to promote the Golf Course.

5. Airport Operations

Bill Hopper, Airport Manager, reported on aviation activities. The lack of snow will allow the
snow crews to spend the holidays with their families this year.

a) Skyhaven Airport (DAW)

Due to competitive purchasing and pricing, DAW has the lowest aviation fuel prices in the area.
Due diligence is ongoing for the ramp project and is expected to begin in Spring, 2016.

b) Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (PSM)

Troop flights continue for a total of 34,390 enplanements as of October 30", Allegiant Airlines
has started its Punta Gorda and Fort Lauderdale, Florida flights. PDA is being proactive in getting out
information regarding the use of drones. Director Allard confirmed that drones have to be registered with
the FAA. In response to Director Preston, Mr. Hopper reported that the Fort Lauderdale flights are a little
slow, but expected to increase. Sanford flights continue to do well and Punta Gorda passenger numbers
are increasing,

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors December 17, 2015 Page 9






c) Noise Line Report

Mr. Hopper reported the Noise Line received 42 inquires in November from a total of six
residences; 19 inquiries were related to helicopters and 23 inquiries were related to fixed wing aircraft.
Director Lamson and Mr. Hopper reviewed the approach of flights over the Great Bay/Cocheco River
area.

B. Approvals
1. Voluntary Annual Leave Buy Back Program

Director Loughlin moved and Director Lamson seconded that The Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director to implement a voluntary
annual leave buyback program for qualified PDA employees on the terms and conditions set forth
in the memorandum from David R. Mullen, Executive Director, dated December 7, 2015 and
attached hereto. Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.

2. Bills for Legal Services

Director Torr moved and Director Lamson seconded that The Pease Development Authority
Board of Directors authorizes the Executive Director to expend funds in the total amount of
§913.00 for legal services rendered to the Pease Development Authority by :

1. Kutak Rock, LLP* b 495.00%
Through October 31 2015

2. Sheehan Phinney Bass + Green s 418.00
Through October 31, 2015

Total $913.00

*Note: The City of Portsmouth will pay the remaining balance. Discussion: None. Disposition:
Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.

XII. Division of Ports and Harbors

Mr. Marconi reported that the Port Advisory Committee did not meet in December. Chairman
Bald thanked Mr. Marconi for his work with a UNH undergraduate class regarding marketing
opportunities at the Market Street Terminal. Chairman Bald advised UNH President Huddleston how
appreciative PDA is for the collaborations of UNH and Pease. Mr. Marconi noted that Chairman Bald
also participated in the project. The class provided some good suggestions that staff will review and bring
to the Board at a later date for implementation.

Mr. Marconi reported that the good weather has been very helpful to the Long Bridge projects.
Two shifts a day are working to drill pier supports and concrete is being poured. Cianbro has been a very

good tenant,

A, Approvals
T Pda 300 — Amendment Revisions

Director Loughlin moved and Director Torr seconded that The Pease Development Board of
Directors hereby approves the Initial Proposal for amendments to Administrative Rules Pda 300
Port Captains, Pilots and Pilotage, as attached. Said Initial Proposal supersedes the Pda 300 Initial

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors December 17, 2015 Page 10






Proposal approved by the Board on November 19, 2015. The Board’s prior authorization granted
on November 19, 2015 to initiate the rulemaking process remains in full force and effect. Discussion:
None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.

2, Atlantic Fuels, Inc. — Right of Entry

Director Preston moved and Director Allard seconded that The Pease Development Board of
Directors authorize the Executive Director to issue a Right of Entry to Atlantic Fuels, Inc. for the
purpose of fuel dispensing pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth in the memorandum of
Geno Marconi, Division Director, dated December 3, 2015 and attached hereto. Discussion: Director
Preston reported that a variance for fueling had been granted to a commercial operation that will allow
fuel to be purchased directly from Atlantic Fuels. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion
carried.

XIII. New Business

Lynn Hinchee, Deputy Director/General Counsel, reported that Gigunda Group, a PDA subtenant
operating as Galileo RMF, LLC, is sponsoring “Project Blanket”. If a person reaches out to Project
Blanket via e-mail with a name of a charitable organization, Project Blanket will distribute 24 blankets to
the charity at no cost. Since its inception, Project Blanket has donated over 54,000 blankets.

XIV. Upcoming Meetings

Chairman Bald presented a proposed meeting schedule for 2016 and asked that the Directors let
Mr. Mullen know if there are any conflicts. All Meetings begin at 8 a.m. unless otherwise posted.
Director Bohenko informed the Board that he will not be able to attend the proposed Finance Committee
meeting on January 19" Director Bohenko noted that due to complete information presented at the
Board meeting, he felt that quarterly Finance Committee meetings would be sufficient.

XV.  Directors’ Comments

Chairman Bold noted that December 17" is the first anniversary of former PDA Board Chairman
Art Nickless’s death. Mr. Nickless was a good friend to Chairman Bald and is missed very much.
Chairman Bald is thankful for Mr. Nickless’s friendship and leadership. Director Torr reported that a
bench was dedicated to Mr. Nickless at the Rochester Country Club and a plaque was placed in Mr.
Nickless’s honor at the Rochester Senior Housing. Chairman Bald informed the Board that at the
dedication of the bench, a friend shanked the ball and threw the golf club into the pond as Mr. Nickless
had done in a moment of frustration.

Director Preston thanked the Staff for their efforts in compiling the Board package. Director
Lamson agreed with Director Preston.

Director Bohenko asked that Staff look into setting up cameras to web stream the Board meetings
and provide a video record of PDA meetings. Director Bohenko offered the assistance of COP staff,
Director Loughlin felt web streaming would provide transparency. Director Preston asked that staff
review the costs of implementation. Mr. Mullen reported that staff has previously reviewed the matter
and will update the information and report back to the Board.

Chairman Bald wished all a happy holiday and a prosperous New Year. Director Lamson also
extended good wishes for the holiday season.

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors December 17, 2015 Page 11






XVI.  Adjournment

Director Bohenko moved and Director Allard seconded to adjourn the Board meeting.
Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote; motion carried. Meeting adjourned at
10:43 a.m.

XVII. Press Questions

Respectfully submitted,

David R. Mullen
Executive Director/Secretary

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors December 17, 2015 Page 12






___________

9T0Z ‘TZ AUVNNVC
ONILIINW S AHOLOFUIA 40 AAVO09

STOZ ‘0€ YIFWIAON DNIANI
dOIddd HLNOW 3AId 3HL ¥OA4
140d3Y TVIONVNIL 9T0C Ad




JWOINI ONLLVHIdO L3N "3SYIUONI 3LV Tvd3Q3d
AIN3DIY A8 A3ONITIVHD ONIE9
8CET (59 0077 T T4 4 i 4 NOLLYID3¥d3d ATIVLLNI LOd 3SN3dX3 1S3E3LNI
3ISN3IdX3 ANV Ehﬂwﬂ_ﬂ ( ) e
&
£9 (92) s - 8z 8¢ ONILVHIdONON JWOONT) ONLLVYIJONON
LON S3LLNIDV4 oEMmﬁ%mmm
' rl 4 '
PTET £SP €L5°T 849 8SPE'T 92Z0'C FWOONI ONILVHE3IdO OL NOLLYDOTIV 408y LDIUIANI =
serm (&87) i 829 6¥0S it *STVS 13N4 HAA ¥3IMO1 0L 3na
T V43 9)] 80 €70) 058 77¢ (9% 79¥4) YIHLO TV ¥IMOT S1SOD INIWIUND0Yd 13Nd =
(69) (9%) NoLigh T HA T 3 v 0asY
(0743 6€ 21 9 pET 88
T SR IONVINVA 1390NG SIALLOLLN  *
(9% 39vd)
0Sg (61) 11 (z2) +91 Z6 SIDIAYIS TYNOISSIH0Ud %¥P'ZT AS ¥AMO1
Zv8 1 £0€ 8¢ 682 Vid3 (9% 79v4) SILLTILLA -S1S0J SNLLV¥3dO *
JALLVYLSINIWAY 'SIVS 8¢ TIIHD
0zL (ot) £1€ b) LOE £0€ ANy Tv¥3IN3D YIHOIH WOY SINNIATY
— NOISSIONOD Q3SYIUINI =
€8E°C 6 80L (¥11) €8 LTL S3LLNIDV4 ANV SONIATING moz:%mzzﬁmm‘,ﬁmmﬁﬁm
‘ . i iind ik 3N -S334 4109 @ISYIUONI =
»Z8'S (€6) 09t'Z (z01) bLY'T L9€'T ANV S3DIANIS TINNOSHId ‘A8 mm u u_%mu_.ﬂ wmu mﬁ_h._ z_.<z_m_a ﬁs«wﬁ%
S3ISN3dX3 ONLLYVHIHO
o . (£# Fova) %8°'0 A9 HIHOIH
BIT T 80T 6779 08 Z6E79 w9 SINNIATY ONILVHILO -SINN3IAIY ONILVYIdO *
SISATVNY
13sang JONVIUVA VNIV JFONVIHVA 1395ang IVNLV
UVIA UvaA 3lvaoli UVIA alva aiva IONVIYVA 135and 9T0Z Ad
ANTWAND OLYUVIA UVIA ¥OI¥d  INIWIND  OL¥UVIA OL ¥V3A
(5,000 $)

$T0Z ANV STOZ ‘0€ Y39WIAON
ONIAN3I AOId3d HLNOW 3AI4 3HL Y04
. SASN3dX3 ANV SANNIATY 40 LNIWILVLS @ILVAITOSNOD



{Z0g) €69 (T6E) (S€Z) 6EL ¥05
(£8) 0€T €L (ot) 8ET 86 YOGUVYH NOLdIWVH
(op) pI1T 89 (¥g) 611 8 YOFYVH AN
(¥02) 00% 96T (£91) 9Zp 65¢ ¥3Id HSI4 HLNOWS.1H0d
S 6 S 9 95 29 LHOdUIY NIAVHANS
FONVIUVA $900 S900 FINVIHVA SIS S3vs
S$9020 aiiasang IVNLOY S3avs aaiasans M%:._Ut e .ran\mh_M.ZH._W—.W\: N
< wﬂ.ﬂdl i dﬂdﬂ .N.Id UIHLO TV SNOLLVULSIOFY ANV 3DVSN ¥3ld =
.V.H g “N.N.d ﬂ h e HOLVINKWIS 4709 S$334 ONDIdVd a
© 0P @ 22t Z3) 66T T 13N -¥3HLO TV 5334 ONTIOOM . SAIHSUIAWIW 4109 &
WMHQ z<=U¢W= FOWNI0A ANV IOVIUVYHM = S$3H 4109
08T T S6 £z #8 L0T 4109
INNIATY _ “sm
€62 6 8bT 8T 6€T LST NOISS3IONOD
(LdvHD 335)
S60'T (€249) 819 (s€2) 6L »0S SI1VS 1and %65 ‘\» i
, " . p (L¥vHD 335) .
9L'C 14 E9'T CET SEE'T L9%'T S3ANN3A3IY 334 -
SILLIIIOV4 %9
S6£°6 65T T18'E 691 T06°E 040 40 TVLINTY .=
c\aNI\ e %l
13sang FONVIUVA VNV FONVIUVA 13sang WNLOV ALVA OLYVIA SINNIATY IH
UVIA UVIA alva ol UVIA alva Jiva
ANIWUND OL¥UVIA YVIAYOINd  INIWUND OL¥V3IA OL ¥VIA -
(5,000 $) T
Y |
YT0Z ANV STOC '0€ ¥3I9dW3IAON
ONIAN3 dOI¥3d HLNOW 3AI4 3HL Y04
g S3ANNIATY ONILYVIIdO A3LVAITOSNOD




Sy

ST

ST

ana
HLNOW

1d3s

L4

[44

ST

51

anN3
HLNOW

100

T6L
[(3)
008
I k74
60T ! 4 I It [117 4 34 i
ALRIOHLNY  coo
vT L £ 01 6 - L 1¥0d
191
9 L - - € - 2z 3IONVYNIS
SOy
£ - - - L - z VRER
b - - - 1 - € ONIMI3INIONI
€€ - Al z - € 3SHN0D 4109 69971
€ - ! 4 - - - NIAVHANS ~ (G1C)
18Oduly  788T
ST - - v 8 - € HLNOWS1¥Od
ININIOVNYIN
Z - - - L - L 3ounos3ay  0¢
ST - - - vl - L onvNaINvn LB
0zZE
v - E - I T Z 3AILLND3X3
Lbb'T
an3
HINOW NOD as NON N3g NON s
AON /d4H  /¥4H  /vS
i i . IVNLOV
SNOILISOd A3T711Id -SISATVNY 44V1S 3ivaoL
UVIA
YOTud

¥
(z11)

[€)9)
(81)
(1)
(z)
(12)

8¢

(15)
((29)

FONVINVA

dyvaa
ANIHHUND

81¢
66v'T

13s5ang
ilva ol
yVIA

€L

184

19
4
[4344
#9T
1442

o1
261
9E8’T

0t

1]
£9¢
S8b'T

wnLV
ilvaol
UVaA

GTO0Z ‘0€ ¥39W3IAON

ONIAN3 dOI¥3d HLNOW 3AId4 3H1 Y04
S1I43N39 ANV S3DIAUIS TINNOSU3d A3LVAITOSNOD

LNO ¥34SNVIL

Y3HLO TV
TvIN3d

VoId
ANIWIYLLIN
UNSNI HLTV3H

S1Id3N3d
JONIHd

1N0 ¥34SNVIL

A2IS
ANV NOLLVOVA
a3anyoov

JWLLE3A0
Q3.LI43N3ENON
d3Lrd3anag
S3IDIAY3S
TINNOSH3d

(s.000 $)




"S3IA0TdWE TYNOSVIS ANV LOVULNOD ‘SIIA0TdWI QILISINIS-NON ‘SIaNToxa ‘T

LNIHAND -LAVHD NOILVZINVOY
ALTIYOHLINY LNIWdOT3A3A 3SVYad

310N
SpunoIn
upubneW p3
SUBWIARY
sd sd JJueydewN MOMNLL WL
lie[22ds sdo S sdo Wisey
suojeW m—p— NEVJPNOQ PR -
uedy Tueq _utﬂnuvvut SJUBIRARY
A0S JOQIeH UOMION |V
uojuRH UARY liePads sdo l s sdo DURYID I
" U0LOIE == BuinOg ADjuo) uny = AT
——
aeBujjjod ueg u::-_n.u“u-ﬂ.( A woy — puRROUY PPOL
2Py s sdo lepeds sdo Sty | w—
astpiond e NN —_— ssabing 1peJn Auoy ,_.._Oaluono
R L p  JuRWIdIND3
wesissy dudem 2143 uep a xx0 qog
493SE | JOqIelH ujwpy pr—
lepods sd Ya1em 961009
) Aindag wws = B J0jes0d0
SIOWIN JueID Jouepeds -lIBumoIg N ™ e JudWGINDY
= Bununoxy eneg SpUNOID = $931AIDS sexsnexyuer p3
_ uewso) eng oig 30D uose) ueky Hlonesedg  4oieuipiood Bupjing ==
Ajnses ujjdor sjuuyor
-_..__Mu_ushu_vn.o Jreven e PouR|dwo)y vod Aosswog B.40q10d P3 J03ea0d0
= Wi JOQJRH JOIYD HolAed JAUD - 185y W MmBIpuy sasiing s JUOWIAINDY
- PIOWlY AR, ueJy SPURS,
UOSIOPUY UM ¥}onueys Adedy — ——— ueYIIYS paJer N3dO L] ity HURLY SPURIY
o »-_“ﬂ“-..“uz 5] av0uibuz 0id uspudULBdNS hebainiine 103es0dQ
b opirid WY scessjufpy WRUN0Y MBS Ve e umsissy umsissy saplIPed Juswdinbz
ujwpy ujwpy WOISAS 1T el e Mg = o oy uolja ujwpy ujwpy pooMN BuRg =T  owesn
sjogna Apng Ipean Jed uosioyEd SSOr 2por uoy ““.-._Huw sbeuew  SNIRW MW -I—IL SUlRWRQ WIog  abed uiqoy | Hoqoy
suope|oy
P waisti Aandeg ™ ookoidwz Jebrueyy u";auuux Jebeuely ._nu--c-z Jebeuew
10 403041 0 Joelig e b nwdo) sAURL gy 00ui6u3 osinod 100 Hoduyy Sanosel BOH I
|UODIR W OuUBS Jouue) AL IIPMOIS elIR W ouAeq 108 Joddoy |1e UOSJIYLIW DOC uoIseM IV
L L b I L B a2
ues|ssy
— ujwpy
eaRD®) 217
1esunon
|eJou0D suopesado
pue J0100.4|Q 40 Jopaug
Andag nopJeq g
PRUDUIH UUAY
1039410
2ARNOX3
uajinK
Plaeg
SYOLO3VIA 40 auvos



10T A C10C Agm

HdQ 4109 NIAVHAIIS
9GE'T ¥89 058 Vi ¥6 ¥6 r
2th 8rE 6¥E !
o - 3sva 205 005 e, y
=) 4 ¥ 43 L1dvD 4109 e ]
3SIANVYHDYIW _
BET T PIFT IV.LOL Z L
€8T 09 65 69 4109 st eroen |
20z €81 £ST Hda 955'c H10Z Ad 1
0zt L1 0S 74 A3TI0YL 1SV0D 08t €61 972 4109 T60's Stozid | O A
vE 1€ 1€ NIAVHANS HM TV.LOL 2
6T0°T G885 #69 16€ 13n4 €Lt 0€8 s18 WSd ko008t 3
061 S8t 681 L¥0d3avil _ e
IVNLOV vT0Z sT0Z 9107 HM QLA Ad 896' - 0012 8
13sang aiva 13sang wNLV 607, A ]
UVIA OL ¥VIA aiva alva P’z = 00z
ANIHAUND yorud OL ¥v3IA Ol ¥v3IA Y3IHL0 TV NOILdWNSNOD HMM
F4 7] £0E 68T ITe
0S¢t 4 POt ({3 (74 7z ¢ %6 ¥3LYM
u % [44 8 13N -¥3HLO TIV €9 81 9z 4 INVdOUd
59 5 €5 0S Lany 110 ANV SV9
90T 6 o€ L IVANLYN
ADOTONHDIL
LL (42 43 0z NOLLYIWYOANI ¥S0dSId
6 0S 8¢ €€ JLSYM
9€T 8 LS b1 oI 805 6bT ¥91 9T ALIDTY1D3713
IVNLOV IVNLOV
13sang aiva 13sansg VLDV 13sang aiva i3Isang  vNLV
UVIA OLYVIA alva ailva S3ADIAY3S uvaA Ol ¥vaA aiva ailva
ANIHHND HOINd OL¥VIA  OLYVIA TVYNOISS3I40ud INIWAUND yonid OL¥VIA OLY¥VIA SILLIILLN
(5,000 $)

¥T0Z ANV STOZ ‘0€ ¥YI9W3IAON
ONIAN3 AOI¥3d HLNOW 3AI4 IHL ¥04
SISN3IdX3 ONILVYIHO ¥IHLO dILVAITOSNOD



"SALVY LSFYIINI INIHAND ANV JUNLONYLS 1830 WHIL ONOT INIHUND VAd IHL ONIQHYDTH NOLLYWHO-LNI ¥IHLYNS Y04 ST#39vd 335 ‘1

‘310N

9 S 8T 8t
S13SSY
40 31VS NO
s ss01 / (NIvD)

Tz ¥4 IV1OL
HLNOWS140d ¥3iHl0
9z 11 40 ALD ANV IWODNI
() (@ (@) (1) 1SIYIUNI
MNVE
St 81 LN3IAINOYd . Ish3iG
139ans 21va T 95 0€ 62 1SIYIINI
VIS4 OLYVIA
VLDV
UVIA OL ¥V3IA divaol iva

ANIHEND doIud UviA Ol uV3A

(5,000 $)

¥T0C ANV STOT ‘0€ YIGWIAON
SNIAN3 AOI¥3d HLNOW 3IAI4 3HL 304
; ISN3IdX3 (IWODNI) ONILVIIdONON a3LVAITOSNOD



ez Tt
yi 74 718

: Tad
1S >

34 =

9z -

L6E =

= SOt

4 £8¢

B 059

: 3

: 8t

. £1

- ¥85
JIDNISI  QIDNISIENN

TviolL

YIHLO TV
30Vl NOIFHOd

(03¥3153nd3S)
ANNd AY3HSHH
-NVO ONIATOAIY

ANNd AY3HSTH
-NVO1 ONIATOAIY

ONIDA3¥d
HOguvH

ANIWIOVNVIN
JOguvH

SANN4 TVY3INID

SHOgUVH
ANV S1¥0d
40 NOISIAIQ

¥3IHLO TV
ONLLINIVIW VOd
MOYUIS3 LNVNIL
SANN4 TYY3NID

ALTHOHLNY
1N3IWdOT3A3a
3asvad

ST0Z '0f YIGWIAON 1V SINTTVAINOT ANV HSVO

(s.000 %)

0E AON

9%8'89 BET'69
(£89°¢) (€60°S)
18 9
L6E 16€
9sT'1 £ST'T
626'0L 9L
v v
vZo'L yZrot
5Ty 6Ty
S9% Sop
£89'E £89'¢
798C ZL68
91T 621
- 0S2'T
90z 84S
GLE 609
8917 9£6'T
ST0Z ST0Z

0E NNC

NOILISOd 13N V101

Q3aLOIY¥LSIANN

3ANOZ 3avil NOI3HO04

ONIDA3UA FOHHVH

AaNNd NVYOT ONIAOTAIY

404 Q3.L0Td1S3d

S13SSY TVLIdVD NI LNIWLSIANI L3N
NOILISOd 13N

NOISN3d

$32dN0s3y
40 SMOT4NI a3¥¥343a

S3LLTIEVIT TV.1OL

S3ALLINIEVIT 11 ¥3H10
ALTIIEVI1 NOISN3d 13N

SALLIIAVIT LINJHUNONON
SILLTTIAVIT LNIHEND TVLOL

SALLTIEVIT L7 -NOLLAOd INIHAND
ALTTIDV4 D07 ONIATOAIY

INN3A3Y QINYVINN

NOLLONYLSNOD -318VAVd SLNNODJDY
319VAVd SLNNODDV

SIALLINIAVIT LNIH¥ND
S3LLIIavIl

S88'TL

88p'6

L6E'TY

=

LEL

€5€

016
PIT'T

ST0Z

0E AON

ETv

TESEL

90211

S29'79

186
5.8

(444

668'T
L8C°T

ST0Z

0E NNC

NOISN3d

$30¥NOS3Y 40
SMO0T41N0 a3y¥343a

$13SSV V10l

(¢12-012 539vd) SS3D0Ud
NI NOLLONYLSNOD

1INIWAINDI
ANV SONIQIING ‘aNy

S13SSV TVLIdvD

S13SSV Q3LOTd1S3d TV.LOL

13N
-S318VAIZO3Y SLNNOJDV

SINITVAINO3 ANV HSYD
S13SSV Q3LOTH1s3y

S13SSV LN3¥AND TVLOL
S13SSV ¥3H10

13N
-31aVAIZO3YH SINNODDV

SINITVAINOI ANV HSWD
S13SSV INJHUND

S13ssv

NOILISOd 13N 40 SLNIW31V1S A3LVAITOSNOD



—

LZ

£ L8Y
ot ¥

L 1$0'€
9s 1474
09 SHO'T
691 ¥6S'T
0t ¥9

144 123

& 16

- 6¥1
88 16¢
L €06

a3LLIWENS vad and 3ivaol
ANNOWY FIONVIVE  Q3AIZOIY

(92)

49)
(61€)

(£1)
@

)
(88)
(€6)
(¥)
(z¢€)

(8)
(zv)
(08€)
(1¥2)

FUVHS
vad

91s

1
L9E'E
00€
L1

€911
958’1
8L
(444

66
191
6SZ
PA

alvaol

Q3anNadxa

6€S

T09°€
81€

'
0T
174
487

L6

0ST
00t
[42°]

qQuvmy
INVYD

(s,000 %)

£9S

06L'€
81¢E

0TE’T
0S1'Z
8L
8

S0t

[4°]8

008

208
123coud
vioL

ET-$0-60

¥1-81-90
TT-€2-S0

£1-90-TT
£1-91-+0
£1-9T-40
C1-82-80

C1-€0-£0
¢T-T€-50
T1-12-21
80-0Z-TT

ilva
IVAOUddY

(z10Z-+0 98S)
NOD3d ANV NOISIA AVMNNY NIAVHANS

(Z10Z-50 98S)
JOVNIVHA ANV INFWIAVA INVIIXVL NIAVHANS

(2102-50 98S) £€-ST AVMNNY NIAVHANS

(6¥# Wv4) NOISIA NOLLYOLLIW NOLLONYLSEO WSd
SNOLLYAONIY WOOYHLYE TYNIWYIL WSd
NOIS3A-3Yd E-9T AVMNNY WSd

NOIS3A ANV
ONILLLIWY3d / IYAOWIY NOLLONYLSEO WSd

(€091 98S) IDVYNIVYA ANV INIWIAVd WSd

(2091 98S) 193(0¥d NOLLONYLSNOD HSY WSd

(1091 98S) SISATIYNY HLONIT ANVIWIA AYMNNY WSd
(SS# Vv4) 3OVNIIS ANV ONDIIVIN LYOdUIV WSd

(PS# wvd)
NOLLYYO1S3Y IOVYNIVYA ANV INIWIAVd WSd

(ZS# vvd) 31vAdN dYIW FINSOdX3 ISION WSd
¥3LSIHOOY 08 LY OW3A ONIATING L¥Od3IavaL

HLVd 3SN-LLUTNW L9043avdL
JWVN 1D3r04d

STOZ ‘0€ YIAWIAON 40 SY
SITEVAIIOIY TVLNIWNYIAODYIALNI 40 AAVWIWNS



oL

8L
00€
€911
9581

ST-0E-1IT
v

JONVIVE

(s,000 $)

(2
(z1)

LT
£S
891

IONVHI

ANIHUND 13N

6¢ L2
cl -

= 89T

IDIAYIS STUNLIANIdX3
NI LNV1d dvaa

Ol ¥34SNVHL ANIHUNO

1
S

4
9L
€8¢
oTT'T
169'T

ST-0£-90
v

LNIWIDV1d3d HOSSTHdIWOD INVYL

(Q8L -vv4) NOISIA-Tdd PE-9T AVMNNY WSd

(Q8.1-vv4) NOIS3A ANV ONLLLIWYId NOLLONYLSEO WSd
(@81 -vv4) SNOLLYAONTY WOOUHLYE TYNIWYIL WSd
JDNVYLNS NOIS WSd

(S5# Vv4d) 3DVNOIS ANV ONDIYYW Q13ILHIVY

(T09T 98S) SISATYNY HLONIT ANY ONVIWIA AVMNNY
(6¥# ¥v4) NOISIA NOLLYOLLIW NOLLONYLSE0

(€09T 98S) NOLLYHOLS3H IDVNIVHA ANV LNIWIAVd
(Z091 98S) 103r0™d NOLLONYLSNOD SV

LYOdYIV HLNOWS.LYOd

IWVN ID3C0dd

STOZ ‘0€ YIIWIAON 40 SY
SSTAUD0Ud NI XHAOM NOILOMNALSNOD 40 AAVWIWNS



—

L

nl
1
[

7543 rad '

11 < .

91S 8 z:

L9€'E 6 -

ST-0E-1T FONVHO JDIAY3S
v UV3A NI LNVd

JONVIVE INIFHUND 13N Ol ¥34SNVHL

STUNLIANIIX3
UVIA
ANIHAUND

(5,000 $)

NOLLVHLSINIWGY

= JONVNILNIVIW
Y7453
(Z102-50 985)
141 J9VNIVYA ANV LNIWIAVA INVIIXVL
(z10Z-¥0 98S)
805 NOLLONYLSNODIY ANV NOISIA AVMNNY
(z102-50 98S)
8S€'E J9VNOIS ANV ONDIIYW-LONILSNODIY EE-ST AVMNNY
LYOdUIV NIAVHAINS
ST-0£-90 T
v IWVN ID3r0ud

JONVIVE

@) GTOT ‘0€ YIAGWIAON 40 SV
SSFUD0Ud NI XHOM NOILONYLSNOD 40 AAUVWIWNS



01T

ST-0E-1T
iv
FONVIVE

(5,000 %)

(1) 4%
(9)
1

JONVHD

dvaA
ANIHHND 13N

IDIAN3S
NI LNV1d
OL Y¥34SNVHL

I [

91 ¥ avd 13Nd 31349DN0D
[4 B AN3IWCINO3 ISNOHENTD
0Tt . SNOLLVYOIJIAOW N3HDLIM 3SNOHENTD
[4 9 3AVY9dN 311S83IM 4709
1T £S (AINO NOIS3A) NOISNVAX3 3SNOHENTD

aS¥UN02 4709

STUNLIANIAIXI  ST-0£-90
UVIA v JWVN ID3fodd

INZHHND IDNVIVE v

:(Q3NNLLNOD) m.ﬁoN \cm zmmzm>oz n—o m<

SSTAUD0Ud NI HAOM NOILONAULSNOD 40 AAVWHNS

Zl



€l

{4 €T - €T 8
6 6 = 6 - ANIWIDV1d3d LHOTT 13341S
4 14 - 14 = ONILHOTT ANV XTYMIAIS 3ATHA 31vd0dd30D
8 = 8 06# ONIATING -LNOGYANNOY
Li0od3iavil
ST-0E-1T JONVHD IDIAYIS STUNLIANILX3 ST-0E-90
v UviA NI INV1d dviA v dWVN d
FDNVIVE INIHWEND 13N Ol ¥3iSNVHL LNIHUND FONVIVE
(s,000 $)

e GTOZ ‘0€ YAGWIAON 40 SY
SSFAUD0Ud NI NAOM NOILONMULSNOD 40 AUVHWNS



vi

P96'1T

T4

Sz6'

ST-0E-TT

I

iv

#0T'2)

74

8

£

(s1)
(91)
(s2)
(e01)
(¥8€)
(665°T)
z

IONVHD
E-LETS

FONVIVE ANIFHEND 13N

(5,000 %)

81T
¥8E
6651

JDIAY3S
NI LNV1d
OL ¥34SNVYL

¥s 8907

St 2

8 ,

3 £

: ST

. 91

T S¢

St €01

: ¥8E

. 665'T
(4 £26'T

STANLIANILE ST-0E-90
dvIA 1v
AINIHEND FONVIVE

V1oL

SNOLLYAONIY 3DNVTIIZAYNS O3AIA NOLIWYH
ddd -LN3W3DV1d3d ¥ISNIANOD

NOLLYOIddV LNVYO ¥391L

ONINIVYL ¥3IDIH40 ALTINDIS ALTIIOVA
LINIWIDV1dIY HD0A ONLLYOT 3AY

¥31d JTLSYOMIN -SVEIWYD

LINIWIDVd3Y 3TVIS MONYL 133ULS LIV
LN3IW3DV1d3Y 39ATd8 SSIDIV HLNOS
SNOLLYAONIY ANV N9IS3IA dO8dVH NOLdWYH
LNIWIAOYdIWI ALTTVND ¥ALYM

SHOGUVH ANV S1¥0d 40 NOISIAIQ

JWVN 153r0dd

(@) gTOZ ‘0€ YIAGWIAON 40 SV
SSFUOD0Ud NI XHOM NOILONUYLSNOD 40 AAVHWNWNS



Si

(5,000 $)

188

185
LT
911
91T
911

911

%05+ ©®
HLNOWSL1Y¥0d

40 ALID

IviOolL

9102 Ad
NI QIvd

0zoz
6102
810¢
L10¢
9102

185

ina
ANNOWY
IvioL

S9%

NOILLYOd
Wy3alL
ONOT

911

NOILYOd
ANIHHND

IVLOL

(vzNOT)
SFONVAQY
ANVN3L

%05’y ©

310N TOYLNOD
NOLLNTIOd

3 LvM
-HLNOWS.L140d
40 ALD

3L1VY 1S3YALINI
/ ¥3a1oH 183a

STOZ ‘0E YIFWIAON 40 SV
S3ILITIAVIT1 W33l ONO1



G802)  (Gsvs) (99

119°T 009°€
(vLy) (ss8't
TZ8 i8¢
6 ¥T

6 89¢

69 891
S0€ £0€'T
e 6v6
IvE 756

L6

1 . {

(m

0T

(m

(8%)

(s

9

WNLOV 139ang JONVIHVA

dlva oL dvaA
YV3A ¥OIdd VOSId

(5,000 $)

9l

alva
OLdv3A

00S°'T

(z£s)

0t

96

£SE

135ang
ilva

OL ¥v3A

£L68°T

(1z9)
88

90T

69

T2€

6LE

JWOINI
ONLLV¥3IdO 13N

NOILVIDO3¥d3a

ISN3Id3
ANV (IWODNI)
ONLLV¥3IdONON

JWOONI DONILVYHIdO0

¥3IHLO TV

NOLLOWO¥d
ANV ONLLINYYIN

S3DIANY3S
TYNOISS340ud

S3LLILLN

AALLYYLSININGY
ANV V3N

FONVNILNIVIN
S3LMDVH
ANV SONIQTING

S1I43N38 ANV
S3JIAYIS TINNOSHId

S3ASN3dX3
ONILVY3dO

SANNIATY
ONLLYH¥3dO

60861 S9TY
£ioz vioz

J3a AOn 400 dis oW ne L1 9

B62L8E
(1

P 10T —

31Va Ol ¥V3A "

AW udv

STO0Z sy

WV a3 LY

29

1404

WNLOVY
3lva oL
YVIA ¥OTHd

995

135ang
YvaA
VOSI

Lo

LST

135ang
alvad
0L ¥v3A

€9¢
81
1

L

9L

8tz

VLV
a1va
OL¥VIA

¥IHLO TV
S3NN3A3Y 334

SANNIA3Y
NOISS3ONOD

SUVONVH
ANV 09¥YD

ANFY
S3LTIDVS

SINNIATY
ONILV¥3IdO

LAO0dYUIV HLNOWS.LIO0d
STO0Z ‘0€ Y39W3IAON DNIAN3 doryid
HLNOW 3AI4 3HL1 04 SNOILYY3dO 40 LNIWILVLS

(5,000 $)



AWODNI

(443 (ZS€) (¥4 (88T) @8] SNILVY¥3IdO 13N (EEET) ¥ ad (T6v'®) (529)
0T 062 (ov) 0€T 06 NOILVIO3¥d3a £10Z Ad
IsNadxa  (108) €€ (oor)  (sz9) (208) 6002 Ad
ANV (IWODNI) 4 T
- i . i ONLIVMIJONON (£91) 85t (¢88) (89) #10Z Ad
(¢£99) bE8'T - (z6£€) (601) STTA o4
(8) (29) €€ (s2) 8 IWOONIONLVHIdO tié B T : St i m
T PIT v
& 2 w 4 WLOL SaNnd AVdIY  aN3dX3 vd3d0 MO =
43 zZ0T S 6t S 13Nd -43HLO TV AINVYO 183a TVLIdVD HSYD 13N
NOLLOWO¥d o ‘ _ i~
; : C ONV ONLLDVIW ISS$  Te8ST 8T 529 ST0T Ad
£ S 1 z £ S3DIAYAS TYNOISSIH0Ud ST'b$ 9gc'or ogs'ot 628'T 9102 Ad
Z LE (6) 91 L S3LTILLN o — 21va HLNOW —
IJALLYHLSINIWAY IAY IvLOL Ol ¥v3A ANIFAND 173nd 40
$T SE 49] vT €1 ANV TV¥3aN3D aLA SNOTIVD
IONVNILNIVIW SALLTIIOVA R ~ Le
8z €11 (s2) i [44 ANV SONIQTING 16 597 9Tt 77T
S1I43N3g ANY T 1 - - YIHLO TV
ST ob z £1 ST SADIAYIS TINNOSYHId o¢ ozt 85 - VS i
S3ISN3dX3 SUYONVH
ONLLV¥IdO vb1 65 09 aNV OSUVD
SANNIATY b
1% [574 3 141 4 ONLLY¥3dO WALV 13sang  139aN8 VLV 3
31va oL YV3A 3lva 3lva oL SANNIATY &
WALV 139aNg  IONVIIVA  139ang VLV UVIA YONid WISHH OL ¥v3A AV3IA ONLLVY¥3dO
3lvaol UVIA 3lva 3lva 3lva oL

YV3A YOI¥d VosH OL ¥vaA OL¥vIA Uv3IA

(5,000 $)

LAOdUIV NIAVHMIS
STOZ ‘0€ Y39W3IAON DNIANI dordad
L HLNOW 3AI4 3HL 304 SNOLLYY3dO 40 LNIW3ILVIS



T TEPD
9P 096
(m ‘
6S0’E T6E'L
81 99
L1 0zT
01
133 £91
X4 ss
S0t S1€
ZETE 8508
WLV 1390n8
dlva ol AVIA
YVIAYORd  TVOSH
(s,000 $)

8l

(1144
(£b)

ELT

(52)

0z

)
(8€)

(€)

(s)

[:144

JONVIAVA
aiva
0L dv3aA

7897T
00%

ZS0‘E
S8
0§

0L

EE

8€T

IETE

139ang
alva
0L ¥v3aA

cL8’e
1313

STT'e
i34
st

0z

(43

0z

€ET

JWOONI
ONILV¥3IdO 13N

NOILVID3dd3a

3ISN3dX3
ANV (3IWODNI)
ONILVYIdONON

AWOONI DNILVY¥3dO

YIHLO TV

NOLLOWOYd
ANV ONLLINAVIN

S3DINY3S
TVYNOISS3404d

S3LLNLLN

JALLVYLSINIWGY
ANV TVY3INID

JONVYNILNIVIN
S3LLNIDVL
ANV SONIQTINg

S1I43N38 ANV
S3DIAY3S TINNOSH3d

S3ASN3adX3
ONILVY3IdO

SANNIAY
ONLLYVY3dO

IETE

[44

STZ'E

VALV
alvd oL
dVIA ¥OIAd

9L

786°L

139ang
yvaa
VOSId

8T

61E'E

1395dng
a1va
0L YvaA

16

POb'E

VNV
31va oL
dv3A

UY3IHLO TV

S3LLMIOVA
40 TVINTY

SANNIATY
ONILVY¥3dO

130d3aavil
STOZ ‘0€ YIEWIAON DNIAN3 AOnyad

HLNOW 3AId 3HL 404 SNOILVY3dO 40 LNJW3ALVLS

(5,000 $)



v (€3] v T9E 8T
(443 91 $0T €1L 68
6EE'T €1 Sl #£0'T L0T
IVLOL WIS A38 Yd3d0 dOHS
/ aoo4 354N0D OYd
mwN T m#c M\ ; 0ET'T ‘ GEET
06 081 +8 20T
66 1651 876 Z60'T
g i E) iz
ST 911 ST £l
081 0ze 161 S0Z
T6L obT'T 904 £98
TET TLZ 8¢T StT
a1va 135an8g 1394and VALY
OLUVIA UVIA alva A1va OL
dOTdd IVOSId OL¥V3A dv3A
(5,000 $)

61

JWOONI
ONLLY¥3dO
13N

(NOLLYDDF¥d3T
ONIGNTE)

S3SN3dX3
ONLLVY3dO

SANNIAIY
ONLLYY3dO

SISATVNY
1INN
SSANISNg

Y3IHLO ANV
3SIANVHO¥IW

SNOSS31 4109
YOLVINWIS
SAIHSY3GWAIW
$334 47109
S3NN3AZY 334

S3NN3ATY
NOISS3ONOD

S3ANNIAIY
SNILVY3dO

TLT
P56
(44}

1€

80T

9L

991

8t

Stet

NV
3iva oL
YV3A ¥OIdd

() ¥4

LLT
9981
8T¢

SS

0sT

SST

£9€

ST6

£p0C

139an8
dv3aA

0ST £9Z

33 €98

S 901

(¥) €2

(n b

L9 29

01 U

1€ £bT

(6%) £S5t

60¢ DET'T
FONVIIVA 139ang

3lva alva

0L ¥vaA

OLY¥V3A

F414
991

62T

8

PLT

POb

BEET

VNV
diva
0L YvaA

JWOINI
ONILV¥3IdO L3N

NOILYID3Hd3a

3IsSNadX3
ANV (IWODNI)
OHNILVY¥IdONON

JIWOINI ONILY¥IdO

Y3HLO TV

NOLLOWO¥d
ANV ONLLINAYIW

SADINY3S
TYNOISS3404d

S3LLNLLN

JALLVYLSINIWGY
ANV TV¥3N3D

FONNILNIVIN
SALLNDVS
ANV SONIaTINg

SLI43IN3E ANV
S3DIAY3S TINNOSHId

S3SN3IdX3
ONILVY3dO

SANN3IAIY
SNILVY3IdO

(s,000 %)

3SdN0J 4709

GTOZ ‘0€ Y39W3IAON SNIAN3 Adoryid
HLNOW 3AI4 FHL 304 SNOILYY3IdO 40 LNIW3LVILS



9€8'7LT #00'SST ¥Z8'0ET $334 WOOY ANV d00A 7566 WLOL
£60°'19 S16'S9 vor'TTT S3INOVI1 mmm._“w.M.Nﬁ mwmﬂwu_uwn = oN 00 & = e e arm . o ,
S8.°401 8E6'9Z1 ZsT'zLT AVd INIWVYNSNOL NNOY A1A ¥10C %
+ 000°C
69T'6€ 098'8Z ' 0v-21 SdNOUD 0TTes V1oL
LLY'9E YIGWIWNON
aLA ala SNOLLONNA ££9°ST HIAWIW 1
9T0Z A4 STOZ Ad STOZ Ad 3asynod /an1d SANNOY LA ST0Z 4+ oou's
\..,\ 000721
wWoI18S  9PETHTS W9Zs 986817 3 (NOSV3s) SANNOY YIAWIWNON / ¥IFWIKW STOZ
- 9/8°691 annc - - -
L6 annc 8 85 85 SAVQ NIVY
- ££T'091 AV
- - AV Q3AVd
: ‘ 011'ZS Zv6'tt w6t SANNOY
LOE'L6 rddv . eever o
N (awn) (aun)
- 62€'v8 HOUVIN i .
SEESE HOUVH NOSV3S  NOSvas  NOSViS
- 5b6'£9 AdvVNYg3d i 612 P STOZ $T0Z $10Z
= STP'1L AYVNNVYC . 085°SZ AUVANYC 00T 000°0% 0008 209 200'% 0007 0
SLTS0T L8Y'S6 e ERE ] ; p _ L
LTH'bT 00991 ¥38W3d3a —
LL0°0L 858°7L ¥39WIAON - — —— VioEs — m—
‘ ‘ e ———————————
1SSETT ZI0'ETT 4380100 sz2'z — —— . o
I i = = - |
£99'991 7€9'4ST ¥3GWA LIS She i WIAWILAIS P— ———————————————————— M”
4 i l
STLS8T 568°891 1snonv - - 1snony ————
, 4 —
65H°9LT $ LIS'PIT § ANe i e . ¢ o _ =
s3VS -
SSOUO SaNNIATY
9T0Z Ad STOZ Ad TIne 910Z A4 STOZ A4 HOLVINWIS (NOSv3s) @3AV1d 4109 40 SANNOH
ANV dva 4109

0z

STOZ ‘I€ ¥39W3D33d 40 SY
ViVA ONINAVIWHONIE 3SUNOD 4709 A3



NIdOIIN  O5%) (E8%) €8 (44 (68)

3WOONI dO 13N
T — T4 9.5 £7 8€T 192 NOLLVID3¥d3a
ONIANTIXE)
S3ISNIAAE 3ISN3dX3
bbT LLT ST LET 00T 8Z1 ONLLYY3dO anv (3IWODNI)
= 5 ONLLV¥IdONON
SANNIATY
¥ 091 8LE e 8st i ONLLV¥30 g¢ £6 90T 99 zen JWODNI DNLLVYIJO
SISATYNY
NIWQY  oyNyW  133WLS ¥3Id HST4 WOMIVH  HOGUVH 1INn ST T987C (68) wET 6
ey : e o — S ———————— NOLLOWOYd
f54 55 4 $897T 80P°T SITT 1oL 1 z (1) 1 - ANV ONLLINYYIW
S8 T¥T 0pT 79 YIHLO TV SIOINNIS
185 SL6 €89 b STVS 1and = o 2 8 €t YNOISS340%d
- 755 75 oeE 19 P11 8 bt 14 S3LLNLLN
ST 08¢ 811 18 204 / 49vHM IALLVYLSINIWGY
4 L6 £ It v ANV TVd3N3D
0z 591 44 x4 SNOLLYYLSIOFY
6 Wl z0T 68 ONDIYYd SONVNILNIVIN ANV
59 S7T (89) L0T 6% OV ANV SONIQTING
6€T SEg orT LET 5334 ONIIOOW
SLI43N38 ANV
A T 118 881'T (08) L6k b SIDIA¥IS TINNOS¥Id
3NN3A3Y
8 6 9 S NOISSIONOD S3ASN3dX3
ONLLVY¥3dO
e SaNN3IAIY
122 LES L61 9T ALNIDVA
ECET ¥89°C (£60) 80PT SITT ONLLYY3dO
WLV 13sang 139ang VLY SANN3IAIY WLV 139ang  FONVIRIVA  139ang WNLOV
31va oL UV3A 31va 31va ONILVY¥3dO 3lvaol UVIA alva alva 3lva
dV3IA YONUd IVOSH4 0L ¥vaA OL ¥v3A

YV3A JORUd VoS OL dv3A OL dv3A 0L ¥v3A

(@3.L0141534NN) IUTHSAWVH M3IN 40 ALTYOHLNY L3O0d
GTO0Z ‘0€ ¥I9WIAON DNIAN3 dondid
. HLNOW 3AId4 FHL 304 SNOILYVY3IdO 40 LNIW3LVILS

(s.000 %)



(41

ST

VNV
31va oL
YV3A ¥OI¥d

(s,000 %)

(44

(s)

g

135ang
UvIA
oS

~

@

(m

¥

JONVIEVA

(@3L014153¥) IYIHSAIWVYH M3N 40 ALTIOHLNY 130d

OL¥vV3IA

@ g

(z) s

¥ T

£ T

I

4 g

139ang VALY

Jlva a1va

OL¥v3A

JWOINI
ONLLVY3dO 13N

NOLLVID3¥d3a

ISN3dx3
GNV (IWOONI)
ONILVY3IdONON

IWOONI
ONILVY3dO

Y3IHLO TV

NOLLOWOY¥d
ANY ONLLINAVIN

S3DINY3S
TYNOISS340¥d

S3LLNLN

AALLVALISINIWAY
ANV TVY43N3D

FONVYNILINIVIA
SAUTDVA
ANV SONIQTING

S1I43N38 ANV
S3DIAY3S TINNOSHId

S3ASN3dX3
ONLLVH3dO

SINNIATH
ONLLY¥3dO

INOZ 3avil

NOIZFYOd  yvaidomd oSl OLwvaA

[3 68 02)
S €T 8
4 Z0T (zv)
0z : 54
L
0z - 8
¥E Zot £
WNLOY 139ang  FONVIUVA
3lva oL UVIA 31va

wn

I€

£l

6T

¥E

VALV

31va
0L dV3A

Ewﬁ:

ANNVJINL

ONILVY3dO 13N
NOILVID3¥d3d

3ISN3dX3
anv (IWODNI)
ONILVY3IdONON

IWOINI
ONILV¥3IdO

¥3IHLO TV

NOLLOWOYd
ANV ONLLINAVIN

S3ADING3S
TVYNQISS3d0ud

S3UILLN

JALLVYLSINIWAY
ANV TV¥3IN3D

FONVNILNIVI
S3LLNDV4
ANV SONITTING

S1I43N3g ANV
S3DIAY3S TINNOSH3d

S3ISNadX3
ONLLVH3dO

SANNIAIY
ONLLVY3dO

ONIDA3¥a

ST0Z ‘0€ YI9WIAON DNIAN3 doryad
HLNOW JAI4 3HL ¥04 SNOILYY3IdO 40 LNIWILVLS



Eli

608
9Z1

£
8ST

¥102Z-0€-90
1V 3ONVIVE

%)

el

999
ST1T

ST0Z-0£-90

1V 3ONVIvE LV 3ONVIVE

'SANNA aFWALSIND3IS S3ANTOXA («)

6L

BST T
078

1874
T4

34
Sve

ST0Z-0€-11

(x)
% -(ADN3IDI43Q)
S$S30X3 ANN4d

(x) % -31vd
NOLLVZIILLN
TV.LIdVD

Wd3L ONOT
LNIHEND

ONIANVLISLINO
SNVO1

SANNd A3.L0NRLS3Y
SANNL TVY3INID
S3IONVIVE HSYD

NOIIVITIONOGD3d dNNd NVOT SNIATOAIY

(s.000 %)

€

 YV3AUORId

ot

|

OLVNLOV

Jiva

[44

135dng
dvaa

AT

(€)

(1)

[€3)

FONVIIVA
alva
OL ¥v3A

~

135an8
alva

OL ¥v3A

|

IVNLOV
3lva

0L ¥v3A

dWOONI
SNILVHIdO 13N

NOILLVIO3¥d3a

3ISN3dX3
ANV (IWODNI)
ONLLVY3IdONON

JWOONI ONILVH3IdO

¥3IHLO TV

NOLLOWOY¥d
ANV ONLLENEYIA

S3DIAN3S TYNOISS340ud
S3LLNLLN

JALLVYLSININGY
ANV TVd3NTD

FONVNILNIVIY
S3ALLNIDOVL
ANV SONIQTING

S1I43IN3E ANV
S3DIAYIS TINNOSHId

S3ASN3adX3
ONILVY3dO

SANN3IATY
ONLLVY3dO

aNnd NVO1
ONIATOATY

-

(@3anNLLNOD)

(@31014153¥) IYTHSAWVH M3N 40 ALTYOHLNY 13O0d

GTO0Z ‘0€ YI9WIAON SNIAN3 Adordad
HLNOW 3AI4 FHL 304 SNOILYY3IdO 40 LNIW3LVLS



€655
(se0’e)

896°8S

66775
BLEE

SS9t
£16°C

[4]
SLE
8E8°T

ST0Z
0E AON

88195
(T1e'%)

664'09

8T

S5
£16°C

650°S

T4
0SLT
£6¢
89S
6TET

ST0Z

0E NNC

(s.000 $)

NOILISOd 13N TV10L

Q310M1S3UNN

3INOZ 3aVdL NOIZH04

ONIDAIUA HOFUVH

ANNd NVOT ONIAOTAIY

404 @3.10n41S3y

S13SSV VLIdVD NI LNIWLSIANI L3N
NOILISOd L3N

NOISN3d

S$30¥NOS3d
40 SMOT4NI a3¥y343a

S3LLTIEVIT V.LOL

SALLNIAVI] 11 ¥3H10
ALTTIGVIT NOISN3d 13N

SILLIIEGVIT LINFHANINON
S3LLNIGVIT LNIYHND TV.LOL

SILLTIEVIT L1 -NOLLAOd INJHHND
ALTIIDV4 D07 ONIATOAIY

INNIATY QINYVANN

NOLLONYLSNOD -I18VAVd SINNOJDV
J78VAVd SLNNODJDV

SALLITIEVIT LNJHAND
SILLIIAvVIT

(333 €EE
L9 g99'%9
¥Z6'68 8919
£25'L 9ET'L
10625 Z15'bS
88T L10°E
0zZE 0TH
8.8 £€9°1
059 b.6

ST0Z ST0Z
0E AON

0E NNC

NOISN3d ‘c-
S32WNOS3Y 40 o
SMOT41N0 a3¥y¥343a
S13SSVIviolL
n 000°¢-
(bI#-0r# $39vd) SSID0YUd |
NI NOLLONYLSNOD
IN3WAINDA - s
ANV SONIQTING ‘ANV $10Z Ad £10Z Ad ZI0Z Ad
S13SSV TVLIdVD | b -
L 4
S13SSVY A310O1M1S3y TV.I0L i
13N
-SFNAVAIZOTY SINNODDY
SINITVAINO3 ANV HSYD e
0€ INNC LV
SIISSVQALMISI  NOLIISOd QILOTYLISTUNN LIN
S13SSV INFHHND TV.LO0L ‘S1I43IN3IE ANY
SIDIAYIS TINNOSYId OL IALLYIFY
S13SSV ¥3HL0 NOLLYIYDS3 1S0D A9 d3a330X3
e N338 SVH 1dD / NOLLYvDS3 3NN3ATY .
-IN18VAIZO3Y SINNODJDV *INIWAY4IY
1930 ANV S1D3(0¥d W.LIdVD
SINFTVAIND3 ANV HSVD Q3LV13Y LNVIONON L40ddNS OL
Sty LS NOLLYOII80 WIONVNI4 G3NNLINOD =
S13Ssv

(FYIHSIWVH M3IN 40 ALTHOHLNY L¥Od DNIANTIXT) ZOHI—..Hmon -—-m z mo -—-z m z mn—-<-—-m
ALTYOHLNY LNIWdO13A3Q 3SV3d

ve

(s.000 %)



885701

90T

NOLLISOd 13N V101 NOISN3d 000z
S30¥NOS3Y 40 d
(zs9) (¢08) Q3LOTHLSIUNN SMOT41N0 AIWY343a
- - 3INOZ 3aVAL NDIZHOH
s IN[ZEISNG SOREWH. | ey’ Y S13SSV V101 p—
- ANN4 NYOT ONIAQTAY
204 GAORIISTY  OPTIT  ZeVIT
, , (bT2-0T# 539vd) SSIDON £10Z Ad
0bT'1T 1811 SL3SSV WLIdVD NIINIWLSIANT L3N (er — RN D
NOLLISOd 13N INIWAIND3
73 73 NOISN3d 60£'6 ¥16'L ANV SONIQTING ‘ANV
$32¥N0OSIY
40 SMOT4NI a3y¥343a S R——
¥4 744 1 PP SILMIGVIT VIOL - 5 S SR NOL
— v vil o
- - SILLIAVIT L1 ¥IHLO  * - -S318VAIZDIY SINNODDY 0€ ANNC LV
Ll vLL ALIISYIT NOISN3d 13N NOILILISOd Q3LOTULISIUNN 13N
. SINITIVAINDS ANV HSVD
P SIS GRS g oo N KN DRSS
et o '] H NOITIIW 6°0% I1IHM
I3 059 SILLNIEVTT INFWIND VLOL mmH%u m_r N %mmwm_zﬁ mm Eainoss
SILLIIAVIT L7 -NOLLYOd INJWUMD  §Zg 019 SLISSV LNIHAND W.LOL .my_._mmzm h%wmaﬁx%nqﬂm& aw wwwn%zﬂwwm%
ALTIDVH D01 ONINTOAY ¢ 19 135SV ¥IHLO  LNIWIOVNYW ¥ILVM WIOLS NI NOITIIW 6T .
o o I AR z€ 99z J18VAIZOIY mpmzz:ouu« NOLLONGTY JHINDIY AVI oz%%%:ﬁwwwﬁ
2 000 umemender @ S—— T e
et se F1VAVd SINAOY NOLLYOTI80 TVIONVNIJ GNNLINGD =
SILLIIGVIT INIHUND S13SSV INIHUND
ST0Z ST0Z saLMIevIl  STOZ ST0Z S13SSV
. OEAON  OE NNC OEAON  OENNC
(5,000 $)

SANNd AILOI™ULSFAUANN -NOILISOd 13N 40 LNINWILVIS
JUIHSdWVH M3N 40 ALTYOHLNY L30d

1A



IS 9% NOILLISOd 13N TV.1O0L

J31OTLISTANN

4] 9 INOZ 3aVyL NOIZHOS
- - ONIDA3Y¥A JOFUYH
ANNd NVOT ONIAOTAIY

2404 d3L0Td1S3y

S13SSV IVLIdVD NI LNJWLSIANI 13N

NOISN3d

$32¥NOS3Y 40
SMOT41N0 a3¥y¥343a

S13SSVY 1V.1O0L

(bT2-01# S39vd) §SID0Ud

STOT Ad ¥I0T Ad ET0T A TI0T Ad

NI NOLLOMYLSNOD
NOLLISOd 13N INIWAIND3
- - NOLSN3d ANV SONIQTING ‘aNV
S3DUNOSIY
40 SMO14NI a3¥y343a el
§ 8 ST | | 74 S13SSV QILONLSTY WLOL |
13N ,
SILLIIEVI 11 ¥3HIO  © z -ST1AYAIZDIY SINNOIDV - 08
ALTTIAVT] NOISN3d L3N
15 S SLINITVAINDI ANV HSYD
SILLITISVIT ANIYUNINON c1ass Loy 0€ INNC 1V
v Q31o1
= 8 SILLIIAVIT LNIWIND TV.LOL NOLLISOd GALOTuLSTY 1IN
S3LLNIEVIT L7 -NOLLYOd LNIJHND = =3 S13SSY LNIHUND TV.LOL
L . ALTIDVE 007 ONIATOAZY . - S13SSV ¥IHLO ST0Z Ad NI nmémmuw ATIN4
"SAVA 0ZT NVHL ¥3LY3INO A9 ININONITEA
NNIATY QINUVEND 13N JIGVAIZOIY ISNOHONLLSIM UV3A OTdd ~ *
NOLLOMYLSNOD -318VAVd SLNNOIDV “F1VAII3Y SLNNOJOV TR
8 J18VAVd SLNNOJIV SINIWVAINDI ANV HSVD 40 NOLLYDIONI ON HLIM 31V1S AQV31S -
S13SSV LNIHAUND
SILLIIAVIT LNIHUND VNV GNV N a
STOZ ST0Z saLLMIavIl ST0Z STO0Z S13SSV
0EAON  OENNC OEAON  OENNC
(5,000 $)

dNOZ 3AVYL NOIFUO4 -NOILISOd 13N 40 LNIW3LVILS
JUIHSdWVYH M3N 40 ALINOHLNY LA0d

9z

(5,000 $)



—

BITT
£6E

TZL

ST0Z
0E AON

LT

0T

T6€

989

m
"=
N

£9¢

-1 {114
0E NNC

(5,000 $)

NOILISOd 13N TV.1OL

Q3IOTYLSIANN

3INOZ 3aVY.L NOIFH0d

ONIDA3UA YOGAVH

AaNNd NYOT ONIAOTAZY

d04 @30rdLS3d

S13SSY W.LIdVD NI LNJWLSIANI L3N
NOILLISOd 13N

NOISN3d

S32¥NOS3yd
40 SMOTINI g3¥¥343a

SALNIEVIT TV.LOL

S3LLNIEVTT 11 ¥3HLO
ALTTIGVIT NOISN3d 13N

SILLITIAVIT LNIHUNONON
SILLNIAVIT LNIHAUND TVLOL

S3LLIIEVIT L1 -NOLLYOd LNFHEND
ALTTIDV4 D01 ONINTOAIY

INNIATY AINYVANN

NOLLONYLSNOD -T18VAVd SINNOJOV
318VAVd SLNNODDV

SILLITIAVIT LNIHEND
SILLIIAVI

ONIDAFAUA JyOFAUVH -NOILISOd 13N 40 LNIWILVIS
FYIHSAWVYH M3N 40 ALTYOHLNY 1¥40d

€€

889

ST0T
0E AON

L8b

66T

3

§ 8

ST0Z

0€ NNC

NOISN3d

S30WNOS3d 40
SMO141N0 a3yy343a

S13SSV V1oL

(#12-0r¢ 539vd) §S3D0Ud
NI NOLLONYLSNOD

ANIWAIND3
ANV SONIQINE ‘ONY1

S13SSV TVLIdVvD

SA3SSVY G310MW1S3y VLO0L

13N
-S318VAIZD3Y SINNODIY

SINITVAINDI ANV HSYD
S13SSV Q3.LOTH1SIH

S13SSV LNI¥dND TV.LOL
S13SSV ¥3IHLO

13N
-318VAIZOTY SLNNODDV

SINITYAINOI ANV HSYD
S13SSV LNIHUND

S13SSv

STOT Ad

¥I0L A4 €I0T Ad TIOT A4

11

£1

0€ 3INNC LV
NOILISOd G31OT¥1S3d 13N

NOLdWYH / X00Y8v3s "

0S SYIVd3d ¥3ld TV¥3N3O .
0ZT$ 3TVDS HDNYL ANNOYD .

: STOT Ad
86% NISVE ONINYNL -+10Z Ad
06$ NISYE ONINYNL -£T0Z Ad

00Z$ NOLdWVYH / X00498v3s -Z10T Ad
0rT$ YOSYVYH NOLdWVH -TT0Z Ad

S

00L

‘SNOLLYY3dO L1d0d ¥Od
S103r0¥d TVLIdYD A3SUNGWIFINN LAOddNS
0L NOLLYSIE0 TVIDNVNI4 A3NNLLNOD

(s,000 $)




95TT

9811

™l

ST0Z
0E AON

8z

EST1 NOLLISOd L3N TV10L

d3.10041S3UNN

ANOZ 3QVY.L NOIZHO4
ONIDAIAUA YOFAVH
ANN4 NVOT ONIAOTAIY
404 Q3LONLSTY

£STT

S13SSV VLIV NI LNJWLSIANI 13N
NOILISOd 13N

= NOISN3d

$30UNOS3y
40 SMOTINI d3¥¥343a

£ S3LLTIEVIT TV.LOL

S3LLNIAVIT 17 ¥3HL0
ALTIIEVIT NOISN3d 13N

SALLITIEVIT ANJHUNONON
SALLTTIAVIT LNJYHND TVLOL

Lall

e S3LLNIAVIT L7 -NOLLYOd LNI¥AND
ALTTIDVE 207 ONIATOAIY

ANNIAIY INAVINN

NOLLONYLSNOD -318VAYd SINNODDY

! 318YAVd SINNODDV
SALLITISVIT INIHAEND

SsT0Z s3aLIIavil

0E NNC

(s,000 $)

NVO1 DONIATOAIY -NOILISOd 13N 40 LNIWILVIS
JUIHSdWVH M3N 40 ALTYOHLNY L30d

STO0Z

0E AON

ST0Z
0E NNC

— < T ——

NOISN3d

$30WNOS3y 40
SMOT41N0 a3¥¥343a

S$13SSV TvioL

(br2-01# 539%4) SS3D0UL
NI NOLLDNYLSNOD

ANIWdIND3
ANV SONIAIING ‘ANV1

S13SSV TV.LIdVD

S13SSV Q3LOTH1S3Y TV.LOL

13N
-S31AVAIZO3Y SINNODDY

SINITVAINDI ANV HSYD
S13SSV Q3 Lo1uis3y

S13SSY LNIYAND TV.LOL
S13SSVY W3HLO

13N
-318VAIZOIY SINNOIDV

SINITIVAINDI ANV HSYD
S13SSV INIHAUND
S13ssv

ST0T A4

¥I0Z A4 ET0T A4 TIDT Ad

0€ ANNC LV
NOLLISOd Q31OI1S3y 13N

"ONIANVLSLNO

, SNYOT LNIHEND 40 LNIWAVIIY
ATIVLLN3LOd ANV SNYO1 34n.Lnd

404 ANVIW3A IHL IDNITIVHD ¥3IAIMOH
S304 LNIWNOYIANT DIWONODI LNIHdND

"‘JONVIVE ANN4 3HL OL
JALLY13Y SIONITIVHD TVIONVYNIH ANY
40 NOLLVOIONI ON HLIM 31V1S AQY3LS




zzzzzzzzzzzzz

9T0Z “TZ AUVNNVL HAA
DNILIIW S, U0LDTAIA 40 QUVOod

9T0C ‘0€ Y393 Ld3S
DNIAN3 dOITd3d HLNOW 3NIN
JHL Y04 SNOILDALOUd MOTd HSVD




ST NVOT ONIATOATY -
14"

3ANOZ 3aVdL NOIFJOd -
el JONVNALNIVI ¥31d ANV ONIDATAA JOgUVH -
SANNd A3ORMISIY -
[4849!

SANNH A3LOTAISTANN -MIIAYIA0 AUVWWNNS -
SYOFUVH ANV SLHO0d 40 NOISIAIQ

—_l

SALIDVL LIa3yD -
6 SQUVMY INVYD -
8-9 STANLIANIAXT WW1IdvD -
€ MIIAYIAO AAVIWIWNS -

ALIMOHLNY INIWAOTINIA 3SYId
S35vd

SIN3LNOD 40 319V1



%6 089 IVLOL

=74 %4 IDNVIVE ANNd ONISOTD
) 16 Q3LYNOIS3A Yad
128 68S QILORIISTUNN Vad 95l MOTd HSVD 13N
TARETS
G10¢-06-90 9T0C-TE-CT 106'8

SOT'T SASNIAX3 ONLLYYIO

1830 L7 = 207 —e— HSYD QAUOTULSIUNN —meme 62T (8#-9% 539V 335) INVIO NON -STINLIANIXI V.LIdYD

1435 9Ny INC NAC  AVW  ¥dv  ¥VW 834 NWC 968'T (5# F9vd 335) INYHD -STUNLIANIAXE TVLIdYD

; X 1 " ) ’ . .
o~ S6E'y SLI43N38 ANV SIDIAYIS TANNOSHId
e L.
& v > e SaNn4 40 sasn
1834 IWi0L "
E NS
\ g g 0057 (000'T) L3N -V.LIdVD ONDIHOM MNVE TYNIILAE
1830 V101 pes

AT 000 m ‘ 08T SINNIATY 13N ANY UYONVH LAOdUIV NIAVHANS

1K) et 0zh LOJYIY HLNOWSL¥O0d

£ST'T 13N -(d0D) 334 IDIAUIS VAIDINNW

SIONVIVE 1930 ANV HSYD G313C0ud
GET'T SINNIATY NOISSIONOD ANV 334 3S¥N0D 4109
" SWYFYLS INNIAIE 140d43d :
L e i BRI o i
)

SNOLLDAC0Yd FANLN QYYMOL SALLIALLISNIS INTHIND & £19°9 SINVNIL L30d3avL

- STNNLIANSDE SAaNnNd 40 S3IJ2UN0S

IVLIdYD A3LV13Y LNYHD Q310300Ud 3ONVYNIH ATTAVINTAd OL e
MNVE LNIAINOYd IHL HLIM 110341 4O ANIT WH3L LIOHS
S.AI 3ZTT1LN ¥3HLAN4 OL d33N OL INNLLNOD TIIM Vad 3HL @

=]
n

JONYIVE ANNd ONINILO
INNOWVY (s,000 $)

NOISSNISIA

=T

9T0Z '0€ YAIWILdIS OL 9T0C ‘T AUVNNVL
(s40gVH ANV S1¥0d 40 Norstzd oNIanX3) AMRITAUIAO AUAVYININNS MOT14d HSYD

ALIYOHLNY LN3IWdOT3A3A ISV




4 54 T4 4 LEET LYT'T Va4 4 0LET SLET vis vor 609 FONVIVE ANNd ONISOTD

9es'T 88/ 061 004 (€26) (s) 108 1)8 1 (s¥1) oz MOT4 HSVD 13N
€2001 g59 S8TT  SOTT  II€T B/ET O IR 506 878 oL
=i . b . o = - _ N R (Or#s39ved 335)
91T = : - - ; = - - 9TT ANIWIALLTY 1930 WHIL ONOT
S9T'T 0z1 SIT 01T STT 01T 0zZT Y41 144 T4 | SISNIdX3 ONLLYAIJO
oY - = - 0ST'T - A - - i 334 3DIAYS VAIDINNW
62€'T T4 S1E 0zz 81€ 1131 S6 0bT S8 ¥4 Eémﬂ%mﬁmﬂ
968'T S6 082 092 8ST £8S €81 SLT €11 St a3y Es_m m%muﬂ
S6ey STy SLS SLS SLS St Siy S9% SSk STt ANy S2DIANIS dw__ﬂ_wwuwm
SaNN4 40 3sn
609°TT €T  SFT  S®T ST THET BIOT ST0T %7 ¥z
(000°1) - - (002) 00z - . - (002)  (oo8) 13N -O0TY TVLIdVD ONDRIOM
08T 4 sz sz £z | ¥4 81 ST ST ST L14O0dYIV NIAVYHANS
ozv S Sb 0s Sy S 0s S St 0s LYOd¥IV HLNOWSLYOd
SET'T 002 SET sze STZ SLT St (1] e 1 353N0D 4109
2€8'T SLE SLE qee 0T €2 S0T 0bT 89 (VA (6# 39vd 335) SAAYMY LNVHO
Y404 012 012 SS€ 012 012 ssg 012 012 sse 334 IDIAN3S TVAIDINNW
L19'9 06S 58S SL0'T 048 S98 1£0'T 595 095 9€0°T SINVNAL 140d3aviL
SANN4 40 SIDAUNOS

685 ZEET rTT %% 0ZET SZET %7 7or 609 6385 FINYIVE ANN ONINIJO

9T0T '0€ YITWILAIS OL 9TOT ‘T AUVNNVL
(S¥0gVH ANV SL¥0d 40 NOISIAIG FHL ONIGNTIXI) MO14 —._m<U 40 LN3 WilV 1S
ALTYOHLNY LNIWdO13IAIA ISYd



TVAQUddY QYO8 DONIAN3d xx
210N

9681 %6 08T 09¢ 8ST 78S 8T 744 1T Sy ANYAO Y101
y K L - 5 - - - - - (ee# 31NOY) H1vd 3SN LLINW
LHOdIAVYL
Iy - = = 8 8 8 8 8 L NOIS3A AVMNMY
SOT - - = - - - oF or T4 (NSIS3A) SINIWIAVL INVIIXVL
(0744 = - 0s 0S 00T 0ot 00T 0t 0t NOLLONYLSNOD AVMNNY
LHOdUIV NIAVHAIS
¥6€ 9€ 8ST 85T € I S LT S - SNOLLVAONTY WOOYH.LYE
oFT 9 S - = SET = = = = (£09T 9gS) IOVYNIVIA ANV LNIWIAVd
88¢ (o) 8 S S (o) SET 0T S S € (209T 99S) NOLLONYLSNOD ASY
TOE 8¢ a4y [45 L 8 0s - = = *xWILSAS INJWIDVYNYIN NOLLYDI4LLNIAI
6T ST 08 ST ST 01 1) S St - 1T 3SVHd -NOLLYOLLIW NOLLONYLSFO
LHO4HIV HLNOWSLE0d
INTWISANTWITA INVED
V1oL FE 5NV Nt NAC AV ¥dv TN EEE] NVE
~
(s,000 $)

9T0ZC ‘0€ UIIINILdIS OL 9T0T ‘T AUVNNVC
(SHOgHVH ANV SL30d 40 NOISIAIG FHL DNIANTIX3) mwm :-—-Ha z m mxm l—<..—-H Q<U
ALTMOHLNY LNIWdO13IA3IQ 3ASVAd




TWAQYUddY Q¥v03 ONIANId =«
‘310N

852 = 74 05 Sg (14 ss x4 ot

8¢ 8 - g . S€ = - € - #x NV1d NOLLV.LYOJSNVHL 30ViNS
0z " - . s = 174 g - - *# SIHOLIA 3OVNIVIA
SL . g 74 0S . - = . - *xSILLIMIOVL NVRLLSIAId -SHIVMIALS
SE - . - 3 & - S 0z 1) ONLLHOIT 13341S ANNOYDAIANN
0s ¥ & - o . = 0s - = *x WYHINA £5 -W3a ONIATING
0§ - E 0s 8 - 7 g - - s INFWLVIAL HILVM WIOLS

lyodaavil

VIOL 435 5nv Nt NAC AV v VW a3] NVC

Sa00$) = 9T0T ‘0€ YIAWILAIS OL 9T0Z ‘T AMVNNYC
(SYOFHVH OGNV SLY0d 40 NOISIAIG FHI DNIANT1oX3) mmz : -—-Hn z mmxm I—<|—|HQ<U
ALTIOHLNY LNIWJOTIAIAQ ISVd



IYAOUddY Q¥V08 ONIAONId wx
310N

0T

ST

0z

174

TVIOL

01
ST

0z

€T

11

*x 4IMOTE SIIF3a

*x YOLOWVAL

»x 3OVD HLIM LdvD 3ONVY
SNOLLYDIHIQOW N3HO1DA
3SYNOD 41709

sk SNOLLYDINNWWODI 3L / S¥3A4IS
/ TUYMLI0S / SYALNIAd / SH3LNdWOD

NOLLVIISINIWAVY

LHOdAIV NIAVHANS

AINIWISANTWITY LNVIONON

(s.000 $)

(@3NNLLNOD) @.HQN \cm N—mmzuu—-ﬂmm o-—- @.HQN s.H >¢<=z<ﬂ.

(S¥09YVH ANV SLYOd 40 NOISIAIA FHL ONIANTIXT) mmz :-—-Hn z m mxm l—<._-H Q<U
ALTIOHLINY LNIWdO13A3A ASVAd




WWAQUddY QuVOd ONIANI «x

‘210N
6ZET ST SIE 02 St oIt Se oFT S8 14 LNVHONON TVLOL
(313 = o1 = 0g g1 (53] % (22 =
09 = 2 = = < 09 = s - *x INFWIDVIFY 133 ITOIHIA
06 = SL - ST - - - - - s WAVTY I -431SIHO0Y S/
0 - 0s 4 - = . - m E *% TUNLONYLSVANT ONIQTING
ST - - - ST - - - - - o INTWIOVTATY LTDRI0S o
[44 - = B - - - = e - JLLAY -MOd ¥IAVOT
Z - g - - - - . L = LNVId JOLVINIONI -4000 QVIHYIAO
0z . - = - . S - ST - ** YIANYS / MOd 1331
sS - o - - ST - - ‘. - *x 13TULS 331 £ -3AVHDdN WALSAS IVAH
FONVNILNIVIW

86% Sz 44 ST 81T o9 o1 0z g -
(1) 8 - - - - - - 01 - - x*Td -S400Q ALRIND3S MaN
0S % = - . 8 - 0s . s *+xINIWIDOVTdIY WILSAS SSIIOV ALTINDIS
0s 5 - - - 0S - o = - *% 8# ANV £ # LNH 40 ONIH00¥IY
1) 87 ST T4 ser 00T 1) 01 01 S - *+ ONIQING TYNIWYAL INIWIDYIdTY 400y
8L - - - 8L - - - 5 - s (Q3317) ONIAWYIZY AVMNNY QTIINIY

LYOdYIV HLNOWSLIOd

{@ENNLNCD) " INT WIS UG WIS INVIONON
TVIOL 435 5NV nc NAC AVIA dv IV EE ] NVE

(50009) e 9T0Z ‘0€ YIGWALL3S OL 9T0C ‘T AUVNNVC
(SHOFHVH ANV SLIOd 40 NOISIAIG FHL ONIAN1OX3) mmﬂ_ : _._.HH_ZN Exm |—< .._.Hn_<U
ALTIOHLNY LNIWdO13A3IA ISYd



ZEST SZE 43 (3 0ET TEC (=) ovT 89 (74 ANVEO TV10L

(ATNO NOLLD3S
T4 i % = = = = T4 , < AR NOLVED) HLVd 35N LLINKW
STT = = - - - - o1t = - AYIAODTY MONS YIN3S
1H0od3avil
VA2 - = = = [44 3 = 4 - NOIS3A AVMNNY
1] e e 0€ = = = 09 4 ¥ - SINIWAAVA INVIIXVL
v6tr g6 = 06T = 60T = & g < NOLLONALSNOD AVMNNY
89 - = = = - 4 = = 89 NODJY ANV NOIS3A SVHIY AVMNNY
LAOdNIV NIAVHAIS
06T 06T 2 2 5 - = 2 = = SNOLLYAONIY WOOYHLYE
T ! = = T4 ¢ & ~ & = = = (£09T 98S) IDYNIVAA ANV INIW3AVd
(574 = 5 74 % = X 5 z - = (z09T 9a5) NOLLDNAULSNOD USY
0£C F 00T = 0ET = = = 2 = xxWILSAS INTWIDVNVIA NOLLYIIHLINIAI
0€T S9 S 174 = = St = : = 1T 3SVHd -NOLLYOLLIW NOLLONYLSE0
€L = - = = = = = 2 €L 1 3SVHd -NOLLYOLLIW NOLLONYLSE0
JYO4HIV HINOWSLHMOd

VIOL ES 5NV nc NAL VA gav VN g NVE

i

S 910Z ‘0€ YIGWILdIS 01 9T0T ‘T AAUVNNVL
(sY0gdVH ANV SL¥O0d 40 NOISIAIG FHL DNIANT1IX3) mo¢<;< -—-Zég -—-EHWUNN—
ALTIOHLNY LNIWdOT13AIA 3SYId




PI0Z e ST0Z == am

aa AON 150 as Sy ne NNC AVR Hdv Ui = ML

ra] JAINVNVND
_ 0s0 3UVIS IHL
e —— S — A¥dVYD LON S300 ¥3H10

il llﬂlﬁdﬂ!rﬁ*- SE'0
‘\ = Iﬂ 0F0

2 Sv'0 NMOoamvia
I WNWINIW ON 40 3ZIS WNIWINIW

7 - 0570

7 S50

090 3 S1NIOd SISvg
g0 A 0SZ + g1H
HLNOW 3NO 3LV 1STUIINI
TVLIdYD
ONDINOM
3AIAO¥d OL 3sodind
PTE 45 JOVHIAY
Q3LHOEM 9T0Z-1£-ZT 31Va Wy3lL
TECE 85T

1102-0T-£0 31Vd IALLDI43

HLNOWSL¥Od

0S'y 020Z-1£-2T 185 I8% 40 ALD
000y F1GVIIVAY INNOWY

(Oom) MNvg

$6'7 910Z-1£-ZT 0SL2 000t AN3IAINOY IHL
ALTIIDVY 11034
000°s TYNISTNO 40 LNNOWY

1S3¥3 NI ALDINLYIN 1y 1v ONIGNVISLNO OO SiNvE
3ONVIVE IDNVIVE ANIQINOHd FHL

(s,000 $)

SISATVNY 193d DNIANVYLSINO ANV SILLITIOV4 LIa3¥D
o1 ALTYOHLNY LNIWJOT13IAIA ISVYId



7671 T V.10L ]
~4 i 4 3ONVIVE ANN4 DNISOTD
(Vi3 66¢ annd NYOT ONIATOAIY
S 18 INOZ 3AVYL NOIZHOS ¢St MO HSVD L3N
6tb b ONIDATUA HOSAVH CELT
12€ 180 SANNL AILORILSTANN . ¥IHLO TIV
G102-0£-90 9T0Z-TE-CT 3 V-N4-52 8H) NOLLYZLLYOWY NYO1
1V 3ONVIVE 1V IDNVIVE SIDNVIVE aNnd TVLOL 0S STUNLIONIAXE TY.LIVD
185 9w WMNC  NAC  AVW ¥V WW & NC 9T INIWIANDO0Yd 13N
| 2 045 S3SNIdX3 ONLLYYIAO
AR L e Sb6 S1143IN3E ANV S3DIAY3S TANNOSYAd
// SAaNnd 40 sasn
{l g ”
| &
L © 08cT
SIONVIVE HSVD AILOTUISTUNN a3in3aCodd 911 SNOISSIOINOD ANV S334 ONDRIV
- ¥02 SIS 13nd
‘QINIW¥3L3a 39 OL 13A SvH ‘(NISvd
ONINYNL HIATY YNOV.LYISId) V-N3-62 8H HLIM d3LVIDOSSY (1743 29VAUYHM / SNOLLYALSIO
21V 153931NI ANV QOT3d NOLLYZILOWY NVO125¢$ =
i ge€ 5334 ONIYOOW
*/102 ‘€ Y3gW3D3A STUIdX3 NOLLY.LYOdSNYYL
40 INIWLHV43A INIVIA 40 31VIS HLIM INJWIFPOV 3SvAT - SOb STYINTY ALTIOVS
"JWLLYIAO 3IA0TdIWE 0 ».zwzzg.zou (v SANN4 40 S32UNOS
U BRI BRI
/| SyDTHO4 RUNLIANZDAE TVLIdVD 20 ADVAN0VY (T 3ANTONI isv IONVIVE NN ONINIJO
SNOLD3C0¥d FuNLNd AYVMOL SILLIALLISNIS INFRIND o
INAOWY (s,000 $)

NOISSNosSId

9T0Z ‘0E ¥3AWILd3S OL 9T0T ‘T AAVNNVL
‘ (sanns azworuszy onranxd) MIIAUIA0 AAVIWINNS MOTd HSYD
¥ | SAOAUVH ANV SLIO0d 40 NOISIAIA




6CT (741 65T e (373 v k477 T8 ¥ss 8tr FONVIVE ANN4 ONISOTD
(zse) (0g) (c9) (£z1) (89) (ss) (69) (£2) 911 (s1) MO HSYD 1IN
TELT P 06T [S54 1T 87T 24 £ST 60C 8T¢

43HLO
0s = 0¢ = u ST = ¥ ST i ANY STUNLIANIAXT TV.LIdYD
£9T 6T 14 {4 {4 ¥ 0¢ 8 A a1 ANIWTIND0Yd 713N
00T 2 ST F = ST v = 0L = S3DIAY3S TYNOISSIH0Nd
€L LT ST cT [474 e ST 8T ¥4 1€ S3LLNLLN e —
8 0t 1 6 01 45 6 4 9 ot JALLVALSINIWGY ANV Tv¥3NID
€1 £¢ T4 S¢ 1[4 S¢ o€ S¢ 0c 0z SALTTIOV4 aNY SONIATINg
S1I43N3g
St6 SL 08 S9T 74 SL 091 S6 S9 SST ANV S3DIANIS TENNOSHId
SANN4 40 3sn
08T T T 80T €I 341 ST 0ET SZE (74
0T e 0g 0g 0€ o€ S¢ 0t ST ST S3vS 13nd
20T 8T 4 1z 0z ST S < = = S334 ONDIYVd
oze T4 T 01 0t 0z 174 0€ <9 09 JOVIIVHM / SNOLLYALSIOTY
SEE = = 2 3 ot 0¢ 0 0oz S9 $33d ONRIOOW
T 4 % 74 S £ Ao = o = S3NNIAFA NOISSIONOD
Sov St Ly St 8t St St 0s St SE STVINIY ALTTIOVA

SANN4 40 s3adANOos

g
L
&
]|
q
(3]
(=)
g
N
L3
8
<
=i
(3]
LAy
?
!
&
7!

ONVIVE aNN4 DNINIJO

134
G EL.:I\.MW.:i% nc NIC AV qdv EE]

N 9T0Z ‘0€ ¥3gW3Ld3s Ol 9102 ‘T AUVNNVC
SANNA A3LOTYLISTAUNN -MOT4 HSVD 40 INIW3lvis
v SYOFAVH ANV S1YO0d 40 NOISIAIQ



|
|
|
|
|

6IP [ {4 TV or (37 Zov 1372 viv Sov oy JONVIVE ANNd ONISOTO
8 8 (6) 1 4! (n 12 6 39) 6 MO HSYD 13N
EH Z 4 [3 = [4 g = ¥ 4
09 - (174 - (114 0z ¥IHLO TIV
(1] 4 * b4 o 4 2 2 Z SIDIAYAS TYNOISS3404d
= x - S3LLIILLN
9 = - i - . [4 - . [4 JALLYALSINIWGY ANV T¥33NID
1] = T £ = T € = [4 5 S3LLTIDY4 ANY SONIATING
S1I43N3g8
= = ANV S3DIAY3S T3INNOSH3d
Sannd 40 3Isn
v6 [i}4 A ot rad T 3 3 3 7T
LT z £ € € z 1 1 1 i $334 39VMOH Tand
6 T T T iE L T T T T SNOLLYYLSIOFY
89 & 8 9 8 6 L L L 6 S334 39VSN ¥3ld
SaNn4 40 S3DUNOS
v L4372 ['14% (5337 ot 132 viv ELiZ ocv v IONVIVE ANNd DNIN3IJO
VIOL da35 5NV nt NAC AV ¥dv TV aH NVL
. :

9T0Z ‘0 YAGWILdIS OL 9T0T ‘T AMVNNVL
ANN4d DNIDATAA YOTAVH -MO1d HSYD 40 INIWILVIS
SYOTUVH ANV S1¥0d 40 NOISIAIQ




"8
%

N

ot

g 75 78 Vi [ [37 [373 s IDONVIVE ANNd ONISOTD
(g) - - (2) 1] - (@ - MOTd HSYD 13N

Y3IHLO TV

€ = z ¢ = - (4 = SIDIAYIS TYNOISSIIONd
S3ALTLN

ALLYAISININGY any TVdINID

SALLTIDVL ANY SONIATINg

S1I43N3g
ANV SIDIAY3S TINNOSHIY

SANN4 40 3sn

YIHLO TV
01 3 = s STVANTY ALNDVS
SANN4 40 S32UNOos

(57 (32 TS

s 65 S JONVIVE annd ONIN3dO
nt NAC AV ¥av AV EE]

:zdr:,'l

14

(s.000 $)

9102 ‘o€ 439W31d3S 0L 9107 T AMVNNVC
INOZ 3aViL NOITNO4 “MOTd HSVYD 40 INIWILVIS
SYOMIVH ANV S130d 40 NOISIAIQ



"€£p$ 40 FDNVIVE NN a¥ALSINDUIS S3aN1OXa (1

;310N
§8¢ S8¢ 0t 9gg Ve 8z¢e (313 (34 g8 L 744 FDNVIVE ANNd ONISOTD
62T ST b1 4 b1 ST ¥l 14! bl ST MO HSVD 13N
38T € Z 4 4 z Z 4 Z vid
- - - = T - - = * - ¥IHLO TIV
8T < < 4 e 4 4 4 {4 4 S3DIAY3S TYNOISS3H0ud
- # * 8 § - 2 " T 7 S3LLTILLN
- B - * 7 & - P - ¢ JALLYYLSINIWAY ANY TVHINID
. ¥ = < - B ~ ¥ - B SALLTIIOVH ANY SONIQTING
S.143N3g
— » = = = & - = = 5 ANV S3DIAY3S T3INNOSH3Id
- - - = - - - 2 5 m Q3NSSI SNVOT MIN
SANNd 40 3sn
vt T 9T a1 ST T E ST I T
3ONYIvE
£ 1 - E - 1 . - - 1 ANNA -3IWODNI LSTUILNI
£z € £ 3 € £ £ € £ 3 SNYOT-3WODNI LSFYILNI
LIT €1 £1 €1 €1 €1 €1 €1 £1 €1 SINIWAYATH NVO1
SANNA4 40 SIDAUNOS
952 0ZE 95¢g F473) 8T €I 66¢C g8¢ T2 95T JFONVIVE ANNd DNINIJO
IVIOL 435 5NV nt NAC AV gdv AV EE] NVT

9T0C ‘0€ Y39INILdIS OL 9T0Z ‘T ANVNNVYCL
NYO1 SNIATOAIY -MOTd HSVYD 40 INFWILVLS
SAYODAVH ANV SLIO0d 40 NOISIAIA



z"J

f

L

-
: A

m

o]
z

=)
> m

M|z
I"z
'u—1
-=
—m
-<zb
= O

MOTION

Director Allard:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby approves
of and consents to the Right of Entry (“ROE") with AMEC Foster Wheeler for
the purpose of storing well testing equipment and associated materials at 35
Airline Avenue. The ROE is retroactively effective from November 2, 2015
through May 31, 2016; all on substantially the same terms and conditions
as the draft Right of Entry dated December 18, 2015 attached hereto.

Note: Roll Call Vote required.

N:ARESOLVES\ROEAMECO0116.wpd

TAKING YOU THERE



| DRAFT

December 18, 2015

Charles H. Lyman
Senior Project Scientist
AMEC Foster Wheeler
511 Congress Street
Portland, Maine 04101

Sent by email @ Charles.lyman@amecfw.com

Re: Amended Right of Entry - 35 Airline Avenue
Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth, NH

Dear Mr. Lyman:

This letter will authorize AMEC Foster Wheeler ("AMEC") and/or its agents and contractors to
enter upon the premises located at 35 Airline Avenue in Portsmouth, NH (the "Premises") for the period
beginning November 2, 2015 through May 31, 2016 for the purpose of utilizing 2,400 square feet within
the Premises, at its sole risk, for storage of well testing equipment and associated materials; and for no
other use without the prior express written consent of Pease Development Authority (“PDA"). This Right
of Entry will expire at midnight on May 31, 2016, unless otherwise extended by agreement of AMEC and
PDA.

This authorization is conditioned upon the following:

1. AMEC's agreement herein that any use of the Premises is at its sole risk and that its
signature below constitutes its agreement to assume full responsibility for any and all risks of loss or
damage to property and injury or death to persons by reason of or incident to its entry or the entry by any
of its employees, agents or contractors upon the Premises and/or the exercise of any of the authorities
granted herein. AMEC expressly waives all claims against the PDA for any such loss, damage, personal
injury or death caused by or occurring as a consequence of AMEC’s use of the Premises or the conduct of
activities or the performance of responsibilities under this authorization. AMEC further agrees to
indemnify, save, hold harmless, and defend the PDA, its officers, board members, agents and employees,
from and against all suits, claims, demands or actions, liabilities, judgements, costs and attorney's fees
arising out of AMEC's use of the Premises or any activities conducted or undertaken in connection with
or pursuant to this authorization.

2 AMEC and any agent or contractor of AMEC providing PDA with satisfactory evidence
of comprehensive general liability insurance to a limit of not less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000),
naming the PDA as an additional insured as its interests may appear. AMEC and any agent or contractor
of AMEC providing PDA with satisfactory evidence of automobile liability insurance coverage in the
amount of $1,000,000.00 and workers’ compensation coverage to statutory limits. Each such policy or
certificate therefor issued by the insurer shall contain (i) an agreement by the insurer that such policy shall
not be canceled without thirty (30) days prior written notice by mail to PDA, (ii) with the exception of
workers compensation coverage, provide that the insurer shall have no right of subrogation against the
PDA and (iii) a provision that any liability insurance coverage required to be carried shall be primary and
non-contributing with respect to any insurance carried by PDA.

3. As this Right of Entry extends beyond six months it is subject to and will require the
approval of the PDA Board of Directors which approval will be sought at the Board’s meeting scheduled
for January 21, 2016.



. AMEC's agreement herein that the premises will be used on an “as is” condition.

5. Municipal Services Fee. In addition to the License Fee required to be paid under the terms
of this License, Licensee shall also pay to Licensor, as additional rent, a municipal services fee in
accordance with the Municipal Services Agreement by and between the City of Portsmouth, the Town of
Newington and the Pease Development Authority effective July 1, 1998 (Exhibit C). This fee is for fire,
police and roadway services provided by or on behalf of Licensor at the Airport and will be subject to
increases each year only to the extent the cost to Licensor of providing such services increases. The
municipal services fee shall be paid quarterly in advance at the times and in the fashion provided for the
payment of the License Fee. To the extent the Licensed Premises are subject to municipal taxation, and
provided such municipal taxes include the costs of the provision of fire, police and roadway services,
Licensee may offset against any fee paid to Licensor the portion of such municipal taxes as are attributable
to fire, police and roadway services, and Licensor shall have no further obligation to provide such services.
For so long as municipal taxes are imposed against the Licensed Premises, or on Licensee for all three of
fire, police and roadway services and Licensor either has no obligation to provide such services (or ceases
to provide such services), the municipal services fee required to be paid under this Lease shall terminate

In the event the Licensed Premises, or any portion thereof, are removed from the Airport District, Licensee
shall make payments in lieu of taxes to the appropriate municipality in accordance with the provisions of
RSA 12-G:14, II (or any successor statute) regarding taxation by a municipality of property that is within
the boundaries of Pease, but outside the Airport District.

6. AMEC'’s agreement herein that AMEC shall be responsible for the cleanup of all debris
on the Premises resulting from work performed by AMEC and/or its agents and contractors.

7. AMEC's agreement to maintain the Premises in a neat and orderly manner for the
duration of this Right of Entry and to leave the Premises in a neat and orderly condition which is equal to
or better than the condition of the Premises upon the commencement of this Right of Entry.

8. AMEC's agreement herein that that PDA can terminate this Right of Entry with or
without cause at any time. AMEC further agrees that upon receipt of thirty (30) days written notice from
PDA it shall vacate the Premises and, at PDA's election, restore said premises to its condition prior to the

commencement of any work.

9. AMEC acknowledges and agrees that it will be responsible for snow removal that is
needed for its operations.

10. AMEC's agreement herein to pay a rental fee to PDA for the use of the Premises. The
minimum rental fee shall be charged at a rate of $250.00 per month plus all utilities and any hookup fees
related to the same.

11. AMEC's agreement herein that this letter of authorization does not constitute an
exclusive interest in the Premises. If AMEC does not use the entire Premises, PDA reserves the right to
rent the remaining portion of the Premises to a third party.



12, AMEC's agreement herein that this letter of authorization does not constitute reservation
of the Premises, an option to lease the Premises or an offer to lease the Premises. AMEC acknowledges
and agrees that, except as otherwise set forth herein, no legal rights in the property shall arise with respect
to and out of AMEC’s use of the Premises.

Please indicate by your signature below AMEC's consent and return the same to me with
evidence of insurance as required.

Very truly yours,
David R. Mullen

Executive Director

cc: Mark H. Gardner, Deputy General Counsel

Agreed and accepted this day of , 2015

AMEC Foster Wheeler

By:

duly authorized
Its:




PEASE

INTERNATIONAL

D

LOPMENT

EVE
AUTHORITY

MEMORANDUM
To:  Pease Development Authority Board of Directors
From: David R. Mullen, Executive Director <~
Date: January 21,2016

Re:  Sublease between 200 International, Limited Partnership and Cousins Home Lending, Inc.

In accordance with the “Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-
sublease Agreements” adopted by the Board on August 8, 1996, I am pleased to report that PDA has
approved of a sublease between 200 International, Limited Partnership (“200ILP") and Cousins
Home Lending, Inc. (“Cousins”) for 2,053 square feet or a period of five years, effective February
1,2016. Cousins will use the premises for general business offices.

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Subleases provides that:

"A Sublease Agreement subject to this delegation of authority shall not be consented to,
approved or executed unless all of the following conditions are met:

L. The use of the Subleased Premises associated with the sublease is permitted
under the original sublease;

4 The sublease is consistent with the terms and conditions of the original Lease;

3. The original Lessee remains primarily liable to Lessor to pay rent and to

perform all other obligations to be performed by Lessee under the original
Lease; and

4, The proposed Sublessee is financially and operationally responsible.

Conditions one through three ha?e been met. As to condition four, PDA relies on 200ILP’s
continued primary liability for payment of rent and other obligations pursuant to the PDA/200ILP
Sublease.

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-sublease Agreements also
requires the consent of one member of the PDA Board of Directors. In this instance, Director
Lamson was consulted and granted her consent.

PATWOINTLA200 International\Board\BoardmemO1 16.wpd

TAKING YOU THERE



TERNATION
DEVELOPME
AUTHORITY
MEMORANDUM
To: Pease Development Authority Board of Directors
From: David R. Mullen, Executive Director <pAna_
Date: January 21, 2016
Re: Sublease between Two International Group, LL.C and Walker Winslow Group,

LLC dba Paradigm Health Plans

In accordance with the “Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-
sublease Agreements” adopted by the Board on August 8, 1996, I am pleased to report that PDA has
approved of a sublease at 2 International Drive between Two International Group, LLC ("TIG") and
Walker Winslow Group, LLC dba Paradigm Health Plans (a provider of self-funded health plans),
at Two International Drive. The Sublease for 5,937 square feet is for a term of five years effective
January 1, 2016. The Subleased Premises will be used for general business offices and related uses.

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Subleases provides that:

"A Sublease Agreement subject to this delegation of authority shall not be consented to,
approved or executed unless all of the following conditions are met:

L. The use of the Subleased Premises associated with the sublease is permitted
under the original sublease;

2. The sublease is consistent with the terms and conditions of the original Lease;

3. The original Lessee remains primarily liable to Lessor to pay rent and to
perform all other obligations to be performed by Lessee under the original
Lease; and

4, The proposed Sublessee is financially and operationally responsible.

Conditions one through three have been met. As to condition four, PDA relies on TIG’s
continued primary liability for payment of rent and other obligations pursuant to the PDA/TIG Lease.

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-sublease Agreements also

requires the consent of one member of the PDA Board of Directors. In this instance, Director
Lamson was consulted and granted her consent.

PATWOINTLA2 International\Board Memos\BoardmemO1 16.wpd

TAKING YOU THERE



MOTION

Director Torr:
The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby approves
of the proposed sign for Wheelabrator Technologies, Inc. at 100 Arboretum

Drive; all in accordance with the memorandum of Maria J. Stowell, P.E.,
Manager - Engineering, dated January 14, 2016 and attached hereto.

Note: Roll Call Vote required

N:\RESOLVES\SignsWheelabrator0116.wpd

P TAKING YOU THERE



z"J
m
>
wn
m

r

TERNATIONAL
DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY
To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director
From: Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Engineering Managegﬂﬂbu&/
Date: January 14, 2016
Subject: Sign Approval Request for Wheelabrator Technologies at 100 Arboretum Drive

Farley White Management, on behalf of Wheelabrator Technologies, Inc., is seeking approval to
place a new fascia sign on the front of the ‘Expansion’ side of the building at 100 Arboretum Drive.
Only the company Logo and “Wheelabrator” will be illuminated, and not the panel itself as shown
on ‘Attachment A’. The sign is 3°10.25” x 10°9”, totaling 41.43 square feet and would be situated
on the building as shown in ‘Attachments B and C’.

‘Attachment C’ also shows that the current anchor tenant Long Term Care Partners, llc., has a
previously approved illuminated logo and lettering sign on the ‘Original’ side of the building that
measures an overall of 109.08 square feet. The building itself, has a monument style address sign
that is encompassed within a landscape wall at one of the entrances off Arboretum Drive. This sign
measures 2°5” x 13’67, totaling 32.63 square feet. This sign is depicted on ‘Attachment D’. With
the addition of the proposed new sign, the total signage area on this parcel is 183.14 square feet,
which falls below the limit of 200 square feet. This sign meets the dimensional requirements and
all other conditions of the PDA Land Use Controls.

At next month’s meeting, please ask the Board to approve the new signage as proposed.

NAENGINEER\Board Memos\2016\Wheclabrator Sign 1.14.16.docx

TAKING YOU THERE



0'L '133HS mwmm ruﬁr._m—lu e T Il “HILVIN 1003 U0 STIAWYS TWALIY 335 KINO NOLLYLNISTH4IY HOJ JUY SUO0D TIV &
. -oeq -uonanpaig ON[] SeAl :pivay sdodg diog :uonssodoq ubig
I £89511L151 SA00OULDEL JoreIqerRayM wum w4 g oS (ASCTONHOAL) 9 S¥iA £ 08:0 I
It i — g Sugewnsy porou g pewied ] miba] huia(T):Adod | o [ e, EAY S010 ONE 59, by Ha
M &t = @ g Bunosubig] POICUWTIUSN O] oo SRR o fooc B D ANy
o o 0380 “ubiseq | fe=a] | 9 S9:A S 080 I ‘14 DS Lt'Ly wony ubig
4NOWD OTHVE JHLSIOZ LHOMHAADD @ TUAOHddY 193r08d woosaiond O £EN ¥A 0N 08:2
LIS LT owos 4 SHOLZL e ‘piopum S U iicsrdorll | L SR ELIN 00LD “
S o o5 o 8 — o o oy s PR EQS A Ade) 130v48 ONLLNNOW WOLSND 3
TTVIN o sores |

SNOIS

Attachment A

"N 30 8 g :Ag paideszy suorwayRads ubizeg H0102 09071 % .
ANNOHONIYE 3ONYHD | €2-LL
HN RLNOWSL40d “50 WNLTHOSXY 00, voneaon | e
S3190TONHOIL HOLVNEVTI3HM OweN qor - -
ONIMILLTT OIBION
WISV ONICING L0400 OL
SHIOWAE HIBONY 7
b |
L
|
{
LN
(SLN) M3IA 31404d

MIIA LHOIN QLY ININIS

~ IWOSOLION Q3S0dOud

S50S0H40TH M09 HINOONYA WL Wy car: woeg| SNISALLIT NUHL HSN /M NSIS Nvd %ov8 Q3ANND (1)

TIVLSNI ' JUNLOVSNNYIN - Y INT LI

(30v4 ONIH3E) £ ‘pdag Jougey
(¥ L ouimoy  J50S0LLONK ¥3ddOD IANOINVA WL "WNTY Jeumqes 30 03d0
4010 0 #aor
45050112N# ¥3dd0I ¥3ANOINVA
‘0L HOLYIN NOLLONAO¥d
38070 V 38 01 ¥0T02 HSINI4
S RO U B LI L Q3LNIVd SNYHLI¥NATOd JITANOY :3LON
IeOMLS XY o1m INOMLE NIALSLL
TIOULE KWL TONLS N2
© S3I1D0TONHDIL e
Jojeige|oayMn Z
} ce— S
[— =
» ML
¥ - .
- FIEES — =
— 670} ——
13dvivd 21

O SN L3000 o N Vo —

(SLN) M3IA JOL

L3XOVH8 ONILNNOW QLN B 085 3TVO8
ONIJILLIT NYHL HSNd /M NOIS NYd %0¥8 G3A8ND (1) - NG







PROPSLED SIGN
LOCATI oN

Attachment C

Buu.ome ’wv.\\a.. ‘
SN
AR

] S
b ' : =

F o




(=
=
()
£
-
=
<




z"J

{?
il
|
|

>
)
M

TERNATIONAL
DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

MEMORANDUM
TO: Pease Development Authority Board of Directors
FROM David R. Mullen, Executive Director
RE: Contract Reports %/\
DATE: January 21, 2016

3k ok 2 sk sk ok sk sk ok skosk ok sk skook skosk ok sk ok sk kol ok ok skl ok ok e sk sk sk sk ok sk ok skl sk skl ok skl ok skl ok sk skl sk ko sk ok i ok skoRok ok kool sk kol kok sk skokok sokok sokokok

In accordance with Article 3.9.1.1 of the PDA Bylaws, I am pleased to report the following:

I

Project Name:
PDA Obligation

Board Authority:

Summary:

Project Name:
PDA Obligation

Board Authority:

Summary:

Project Name:
PDA Obligation

Board Authority:

Summary:

Project Name:
PDA Obligation

Board Authority:

Summary:

Vanasse, Hangen & Brustlin, Inc.

$3,000

Vice-Chairman Loughlin

To perform traffic counts and prepare data analysis for the intersection at
New Hampshire Avenue, Pease Boulevard, Arboretum Drive, and the Air
National Guard entrance.

Northeast Hydraulics, Inc.

$7,722.00

Vice-Chairman Loughlin

For the purchase of one 5.0 cubic yard hydraulic sander for use by the PDA
Maintenance Department to assist in snow removal.

Donavan Equipment Co., Inc.

$7,250.00

Vice-Chairman Loughlin

For the purchase of one 11' steel plow for use by the Maintenance
Department to assist in snow removal.

Toro NSN - Software Program Service Contract

$5,,220.00

Approved Budget Item

Three year service contract for a software program used by the Golf Course
to troubleshoot turf equipment and irrigation equipment on-line.

PABOARDMTG\Contractrpt0116.wpd

TAKING YOU THERE



-0

o]
z
>

> Y’?'

(0p)
T

o)
> M
c<
- M=
Ig z

p-3
o L
=

—m
<z

=]

MOTION

Director Bohenko:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
authorizes the Executive Director to:

(1)

(2)

accept on behalf of the PDA for the specification and
procurement of an Identity Management System (“IDMS”), a
Federal Aviation Administration ("FAA") Grant Offer in AIP
funding for FY 16, equal to 90% of the IDMS project costs, in
the amount not to exceed $354,792.60;

accept from NHDOT Division of Aeronautics 5% of the IDMS
project costs in an amount not to exceed $19,710.70;

expend PDA funds equal to 5% of the project costs in an
amount not to exceed $19,710.70;

enter into a contract with Hoyle Tanner & Associates, Inc. for
the IDMS project in the total amount of $394,214; and

execute such other documents and/or agreements as are
necessary or appropriate, e.g. software licensing agreements,
to implement the IDMS.

all in accordance with the memorandum from Maria J. Stowell, P.E., dated
January 7, 2016 and attached hereto.

Note: Roll Call Vote required.

N:\RESOLVES\IDMS0116.wpd

TAKING YOU THERE



o\
S

™0

=<
ZEm

TERNATION

DEVELOPME
e MEMORANDUM
To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director
From: Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Engineering Manag\e%mb
Kim W. Hopper, A.A.E., Airport Manager

Date: January 14, 2016
Subject: FAA Grant for Identification Management System (IDMS)

PDA staff and Hoyle, Tanner, & Associates (HTA) have been working towards the submission of a grant
application for the Specification and Procurement of an Identity Management System (IDMS). This system will
be used to consolidate and automate the several spreadsheets and databases that the airport currently uses to track
security related items such as badges, keys, and vehicle stickers. The work thus far has included the development
of a Request for Proposals and the evaluation of responses. At this time, we have secured all the costs associated
with the project and are prepared to submit the grant application.

With regard to the project costs, work by five separate firms will be needed. HTA has aided in developing the
RFP for the software developer and assessing the respondents. HTA will also coordinate procurements with the
other vendors, will assist with system testing and acceptance, and will perform all of the grant administrative
tasks. Quantum Secure is the software developer. PDA’s previously selected vendors, Honeywell, Crossmatch,
and Day Star will provide access control, fingerprint matching, and IT services respectively. The attachment
contains more detailed descriptions of the roles of each sub-consultant. HTA will act as the prime contractor for
the project and will subcontract with the other four vendors. The costs for each firm are:

Hoyle, Tanner, & Associates $ 71,900
Quantum Secure $ 247,235
Honeywell $ 30,000 (Estimate)
Crossmatch $ 17,498
Day Star $ 27,581
TOTAL $ 394,214

We anticipate receiving a grant offer in March that will cover 95% of the project costs. The work will start soon
after and should finish by the end of the year.

At next week’s meeting, please ask the Board to authorize you to:

L. Accept 90% of the project costs for the IDMS, an amount not to exceed $354,792.60, from FAA through

the State Block Grant Program;
2. Accept 5% of the project costs for the IDMS, an amount not to exceed $19,710.70 from NH-DOT Bureau

of Aeronautics;

Expend up to $19,710.70 of PDA funds, 5% of the project costs for the IDMS; and,

4. Enter into a contract with Hoyle, Tanner, & Associates in an amount of $394,214 for work as described
in this memo.

(V8]

NAENGINEER\Board Memos\2016\DMS grant.docx
TAKING Y O U THERE



PSM 062858 IDMS

Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (PSM)
Procurement and Implementation of an Identity Management System (IDMS) for Airport Security

Last saved on: 1/14/2016 8:30 AM
ROLES AND DELIVERABLES OF SUB-CONSULTANTS:

Sub-consultant: Quantum Secure

Quantum Secure (part of HID global) is the primary sub-consultant providing the IDMS (Identity
Management System) core software and databases. This also includes installation, project management,
implementation training, and partial hardware solution (Servers provided by Daystar, fingerprinting by

Crossmatch).

Quantum Secure is providing:
o IDMS Core Software and Module licenses for up to 2000 badges
o Connectivity and “Interaction Agents” to the systems not provided by Quantum Secure
o Project services, including project management, system design and configuration,
implementation, integration plan, interface development, system activation/initial
operational support and training.

e Travel (NTE Estimate)
o SAFE for Aviation Intelligent Badging Workstation and Hardware peripherals to support

use of the IDMS system and 2 Crossmatch fingerprint scanning stations.

Sub-consultant: Crossmatch

Crossmatch is a sub-consultant providing the hardware and software needed to capture and process
fingerprints in the format required by the FBI to perform a Criminal History Background Check (CHBC)
for badge applicants. To facilitate the processing of applicants, the Airport has elected to install two
separate stations, with one station replacing a Crossmatch computer that is outdated in both hardware

and software (running unsupported Windows XP).

Crossmatch is providing:
e Crossmatch Fingerprinting Software
o Two dedicated Crossmatch workstation PC’s, operating system, software and
peripherals
o A 10 finger fingerprint capture peripheral
o Installation, configuration and assistance with integration into existing systems,
including work necessary to integrate with Quantum Secure.

Sub-consultant: Daystar




=0

-
EA

m

o
=z
>

o
> m

am|x

::"'z
'U—!
=

<z
-]~

MOTION

Director Lamson:

The PDA Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director
to complete negotiations and execute a Contract Extension with Vanasse
Hangen, Brustlin, Inc. (“VHB") for the provision of transportation consulting
services. The contract is hereby extended for a period of two years effective
May 1, 2015.

Further, the Executive Director is authorized to expend an amount not
to exceed $30,000 for VHB’s provision of intersection and infrastructure

improvement cost estimating work; all in accordance with the memorandum
from Maria J. Stowell, P.E., dated January 13, 2016 attached hereto.

Note: Roll Call vote required.

N:\RESOLVES\VHBO116.wpd

TAKING YOU THERE

AN



s

=" J
>
wn

Z|zm

TERNATION
DEVELOPME
AUTHORITY
To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director
From: Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Engineering M'anagg\r N~
Date: January 14, 2016
Subject: VHB Contact Extension and Task Assignment Approval

In 2010, as the result of a qualifications based process, PDA selected Vanasse Hangen Brustlin, Inc. (VHB)
to provide transportation engineering services on as-needed basis. The contract term was five years,
which expired last May.

One of the tasks completed by VHB was an update to the Pease Surface Transportation Master Plan. The
update included recommendations for improvements to Pease intersections and planning level cost
estimates for the improvements. Atthis time, we are in need of a more precise estimate of the intersection
costs, which can be used to identify a funding mechanism. In the near future, we also anticipate additional
data collection to determine if the current traffic levels trigger any infrastructure improvements.

Because of VHB's familiarity with Pease, we believe it is the firm most qualified to provide this follow up
work. The need for the cost estimating is immediate and a January Board approval is needed to stay on
schedule. VHB is developing a fee proposal but it is not available at the time of this memo.

At next week’s Board meeting, please ask the Board for authorization to extend VHB's contract an
additional two years to provide follow up transportation consulting services. Also seek approval to
expend an amount not to exceed $30,000 for cost estimating work described above.

NAENGINEERBoard Memos\2016\VHDB contract extension.docx

TAKING YOU THERE



MOTION

Director Loughlin:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors authorizes the
Executive Director to execute a contract with the United States Department of
Agriculture Wildlife Service (USDA WS) from January 1, 2016 through December
31,2016, in the amount of $18,358.00 for the purpose of providing integrated
turkey, other large bird, and animal control and monitoring services at the
Airfield: all in accordance with the memorandum of Andrew B. Pomeroy, Airport
Operations Supervisor, dated January 12, 2016, and attached hereto.

In accordance with the provisions of RSA 12-G:8 VIII, the Board justifies
the waiver of the RFP requirement based on the following reasons:

I. PDA has a long standing relationship with USDA WS stemming back
to the time PDA was formed. As a part of that ongoing relationship,
the USDA WS has maintained ongoing wildlife surveys, with data
dating back to its first arrival at Pease. PDA does not want to

interrupt this data stream.

2. The USDA WS conducts training classes for PDA Airport Operations
Personnel on Airport Wildlife Hazard Management, to meet FAR
139 requirements. USDA is the FAA recognized authority for such

required training.

Note: This motion requires 5 affirmative votes.

NARESOLVES\USDAWS0116.wpd

' TAKING YOU THERE



INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

TO: DAVID R. MULLEN, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR -W/\

FROM: ANDREW B. POMEROY, AIRPORT OPERATIONS SUPERV ISO@
SUBJECT: USDA/WS WILDLIFE CONTROL PROPOSAL

DATE: 1/12/2016

CC: KIM W. HOPPER, A.AE., AIRPORT MANAGER

In accordance with USDA WS responsibilities under 7 U.S. Code 426-426¢ 46 Statute 1468; USDA
WS and the FAA have entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (No. 12-34-71-0003-MOU)
establishing the USDA WS as the recognized authority on wildlife hazard management at airports.

The PDA had entered into contract with USDA/WS for airport wildlife hazard management
services. The contract expired on December 31, 2015 and it is important that these efforts continue
to ensure the safety of the flying public as well as compliance with 14 CFR part 139.

The USDA has proposed a new contract through FY16 in the amount of $18,358.68. The new
contract incorporates the provisions of the long standing USDA Wildlife Services Agteement,
including woodchuck control, wild turkey control, as well as large bird and mammal control to include
trapping of coyotes and fox. The contract includes the use of wildlife mitigation techniques,
equipment, and training of airport staff. The $18,358 is a $361.98 increase over last year and represents
the PDA’s share of the agreement, the other half having been funded by a cooperative agreement with
the New Hampshire Air National Guard.

So far the collaborative efforts of the airport staff and USDA WS have been successful; however,
we need to continue the program to ensure the continued safety of the airfield and the flying public. I
recommend that the PDA accept the attached proposal as presented.

In accordance with the provisions of RSA 12-G:8 VIII, we recommend waiving the RFP
requirement for the following reasons: The PDA has a long standing relationship with USDA WS
stemming beck to the time the PDA was formed. As part of that relationship the USDA WS has
maintained ongoing wildlife surveys, with data dating back to its first atrival at Pease. PDA does not
want to interrupt this data stream. In addition the USDA WS conducts training classes for PDA
Airport Operations Personnel on Airport Wildlife Hazard Management, to meet 14 CFR 139
Requirements. The USDA is the FAA recognized federal authority for airport wildlife hazard
management and training,

I request that you seek Board of Director’s approval at their January 21, 2016 meeting to enter into
a cooperative service agreement with the United States Department of Agtriculture Animal and Plant
Health Inspection Service and Wildlife Services, to continue its integrated wildlife control and
monitoring duties. Any taking of wildlife will be confined within the airport perimeter fence and in
compliance with Federal and State permits. The contract’s effective date is January 1, 2016 and will
expire December 31, 2016.

Attached is a copy of the proposed agreement.



WS-ER (6/14) Agreement No.: 16-7233-8003-RA
WBS Element: AP.RA.RX33.72.0001

COOPERATIVE SERVICE AGREEMENT
between
PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (PDA)
and
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
ANIMAL AND PLANT HEALTH INSPECTION SERVICE (AFPHIS)
WILDLIFE SERVICES (WS)

ARTICLE 1

The purpose of this Cooperative Service Agreement is to conduct an integrated wildlife
control and monitoring project with an emphasis on wild turkeys on the Air Operations
Area (AOA) at the Pease International Tradeport facility Portsmouth, NH. The project’s
objective is to reduce the threat of strikes involving wild birds and mammals and to prevent
wildlife damage to air traffic and air passengers. WS activities are described in attached
Work and Financial Plans.

ARTICLE 2

APHIS WS has statutory authority under the Act of March 2, 1931 (46 Stat. 1468; 7
U.S.C.426-426b) as amended, and the Act of December 22, 1987 (101Stat. 1329-331, 7
U.S.C. 426¢), to cooperate with States, local jurisdictions, individuals, public and private
agencies, organizations, and institutions while conducting a program of wildlife services
involving mammal and bird species that are reservoirs for zoonotic diseases, or animal
species that are injurious and/or a nuisance to, among other things, agriculture, horticulture,
forestry, animal husbandry, wildlife, and human health and safety.

ARTICLE 3

APHIS WS and PDA mutually agree:

1. The parties’ authorized representatives who shall be responsible for carrying out the
provisions of this Agreement shall be: :

PDA: Kim William Hopper, Deputy Airport Manager
Pease International Tradeport
36 Airline Avenue
Portsmouth, NH 03801
APHIS-WS: David Allaben, State Director, NH/VT
USDA, APHIS, WS
59 Chenell Drive, Suite 7
Concord, NH 03301-8548



To meet as determined necessary by either party to discuss mutual program
interests, accomplishments, needs, technology, and procedures to maintain or
amend the Work Plan (Attachment A). Personnel authorized to attend meetings
under this Agreement shall be Pease International Tradeport Airport Manager or
his/her designee, the State Director or his/her designee, and/or those additional
persons authorized and approved by the Pease International Tradeport Airport
Manager and the State Director.

APHIS WS shall perform services more fully set forth in the Work Plan, which is
attached hereto and made a part hereof. The parties may mutually agree in writing,
at any time during the term of this Agreement, to amend, modify, add or delete

services from the Work Plan.

ARTICLE 4

PDA agrees:

1.

To authorize APHIS WS to conduct direct control activities to reduce human health
and safety risks and property damage associated with turkeys, other large birds and
as requested mammals attracted to Pease International Tradeport in Portsmouth,
New Hampshire. These activities are defined in the Work Plan. APHIS WS will be
considered an invitee on the lands controlled by PDA. PDA will be required to
exercise reasonable care to warn APHIS WS as to dangerous conditions or activities
in the project areas.

To reimburse APHIS WS for costs of services provided under this Agreement up to
but not exceeding the amount specified in the Financial Plan (Attachment B). PDA
will begin processing for payment invoices submitted by APHIS WS within 30 days
of receipt. The PDA ensures and certifies that it is not currently debarred or
suspended and is free of delinquent Federal debt.

To designate to APHIS WS the PDA authorized individual whose responsibility
shall be the coordination and administration of activities conducted pursuant to this

Agreement.

To notify APHIS WS verbally or in writing as far in advance as practical of the date
and time of any proposed meeting related to the program.

APHIS WS shall be responsible for administration and supervision of the program.

There will be no equipment with a procurement price of $5,000 or more per unit
purchased directly with funds from the cooperator for use solely on this project. All



other equipment purchased for the program is and will remain the property of
APHIS WS.

7. To coordinate with APHIS WS before responding to all media requests.

8. To obtain the appropriate permits for removal activities for wildlife and migratory

birds and list USDA, APHIS, Wildlife Services as sub-permitees.

9. To provide an indoor working space to complete necessary paperwork.

10. To designate airport staff to conduct bird harassment activities that will be trained

by WS to apply techniques to effectively keep birds from using the AOA when WS
personnel are not present at the facility.

ARTICLE 5

APHIS WS Agrees:

1.

To conduct activities at the Pease International Tradeport as described in the
Work and Financial Plans. All WS activities except monitoring will be
conducted solely inside the airport perimeter fence as detailed in the Work and
Financial Plans. WS could potentially conduct future non-lethal harassment
activities at identified and approved sites outside the airport perimeter fence upon
approval by PDA if it is determined necessary. WS will provide all resources
necessary for accomplishment of the program including personnel, equipment,
supplies and other support materials.

2. Designate to PDA the authorized APHIS WS individual who shall be responsible

For the joint administration of the activities conducted pursuant to this Agreement.

3. To bill PDA monthly for costs incurred by APHIS WS, during the performance of

services agreed upon and specified in the Work Plan. APHIS WS shall keep
records of all reimbursable expenditures hereunder for a period of not less than
one year from the date of completion of the services provided under this
Agreement and PDA shall have the right to inspect and audit such records.

To provide qualified personnel to continue the conduct of control activities as
outlined in the Work and Financial Plans referenced in Agreement.

To annually prepare a final report of activities conducted under this Agreement.

To help secure all necessary wildlife permits for implementation of the integrated
program.



7. To wear appropriate safety equipment and follow safety guidelines that comply
with APHIS-WS and Pease International Tradeport procedures.

8. To monitor bird presence at identified properties adjacent to the facility.

9. The PDA shall have the right to use or permit the use of all estimates, reports,
records, data, charts, documents, models, designs, renderings, drawings,
specifications, computations and other papers of any type whatsoever, whether in
the form of writing, figures, or delineations, or any ideas or methods represented
by them, which are prepared or compiled in connection with this Agreement, for
any purpose and at any time without other compensation than that specifically
provided herein.

10. To coordinate with PDA before responding to all media requests.

ARTICLE 6

This Agreement is contingent upon the passage by Congress of an appropriation from
which expenditures may be legally met and shall not obligate APHIS WS upon failure of
Congress to so appropriate. This Agreement may also be reduced or terminated if
Congress only provides APHIS WS funds for a finite period under a Continuing
Resolution.

ARTICLE 7
APHIS WS assumes no liability for any actions or activities conducted under this
Cooperative Service Agreement except to the extent that recourse or remedies are provided
by Congress under the Federal Tort Claims Act (28 U.S.C. 1346(b), 2401(b), and 2671-
2680).
ARTICLE 8
Pursuant to Section 22, Title 41, United States Code, no member of or delegate to Congress
shall be admitted to any share or part of this Agreement or to any benefit to arise therefrom.
ARTICLE 9
Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent APHIS WS from entering into separate

agreements with any other organization or individual for the purpose of providing wildlife
damage management services exclusive of those provided for under this agreement.



ARTICLE 10

PDA certifies that APHIS WS has advised PDA that there may be private sector service
providers available to provide wildlife management services that PDA is seeking from
APHIS WS.

ARTICLE 11

The performance of wildlife damage management actions by APHIS WS under this
agreement is contingent upon a determination by APHIS WS that such actions are in
compliance with the National Environmental Policy Act, Endangered Species Act, and any
other applicable federal statutes. APHIS WS will not make a final decision to conduct
requested wildlife damage management actions until it has made the determination of such
compliance.

ARTICLE 12

This Cooperative Service Agreement may be amended at any time by mutual agreement of
the parties in writing. Also, this Agreement may be terminated at any time by mutual
agreement of the parties in writing, or by one party provided that party notifies the other in
writing at least 120 days prior to effecting such action. Further, in the event the PDA does
not provide necessary funds, APHIS WS is relieved of the obligation to provide services
under this agreement.



In accordance with the Debt Collection Improvement Act of 1996, the Department of
Treasury requires a Taxpayer Identification Number for individuals or businesses
conducting business with the agency.

PDA Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN) 02-0440365

Pease Development Authority (PDA)

BY:

David Mullen Date
Executive Director

Pease Development Authority (PDA)

360 Corporate Drive

Pease International Tradeport

Portsmouth, NH 03801

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
ANIMAL AND PLANT HEALTH INSPECTION SERVICE
WILDLIFE SERVICES

BY:

David Allaben, State Director, NH/VT Date
USDA, APHIS, Wildlife Services

59 Chenell Drive, Suite 7

Concord, NH 03301



ATTACHMENT A
WORK PLAN

Introduction

The U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) is authorized to protect American
agriculture and other resources from damage associated with wildlife. The primary
authority for APHIS WS is the Act of March 2, 1931 (46 Stat. 1468; 7 U.S.C.426-426b)
as amended, and the Act of December 22, 1987 (101Stat. 1329-331, 7 U.S.C. 426c¢).
Wildlife Services activities are conducted in cooperation with other Federal, State and
local agencies; private organizations and individuals.

The APHIS WS program uses an Integrated Wildlife Damage Management (IWDM)
approach (sometimes referred to as [PM or “Integrated Pest Management”) in which a
series of methods may be used or recommended to reduce wildlife damage. IWDM is
described in Chapter 1, 1-7 of the Animal Damage Control Program Final
Environmental Impact Statement (USDA, 1994). These methods include the alteration
of cultural practices as well as habitat and behavioral modification to prevent damage.
However, controlling wildlife damage may require that the offending animal(s) are
killed or that the populations of the offending species be reduced.

Purpose

To reduce threats to air traffic and air passengers associated with turkeys, other large
birds and mammals attracted to the AOA at Pease International Tradeport Portsmouth,
NH through the conduct of integrated bird and mammal harassment, removal and
monitoring activities.

Planned USDA, APHIS, Wildlife Services Activities

1. WS will staff the integrated harassment program one to two working days (8-9
hours) per week for up to a 7 month period (4/1/14-10/31/14). Staffing will coincide
with periods of greatest concern regarding turkey presence on the AOA and biological
behaviors (flocking and movements) that pose the greatest safety concerns to air traffic.
Scheduling (days and hours worked) will vary throughout the project to reduce bird
habituation to harassment timing. Identified bird and mammal harassment, removal and
monitoring services will also be provided as needed outside this 7 month period during

the calendar year.

2. A WS Airport Wildlife Control Specialist (AWCS) shall patrol the perimeter of the
AOA, attempting to keep it free of turkeys and other large birds such as Canada geese,
gulls, turkey vultures and crows by pyrotechnic harassment and limited shooting to
reinforce the deterrent effect of non-lethal pyrotechnics. As time and bird pressure
permits, the AWCS will patrol other areas of turkey activity including: wooded area



adjacent to the North Apron, woods by Pan Am hangers, the 2 mitigated landfills, Pease
Golf Course and Great Bay National Wildlife Refuge.

3. All harassment and bird removal activities will be conducted inside the perimeter
fence. Bird removal (shooting) will be conducted in accordance with strict shooting
protocol and only when considered absolutely safe. Shells will be retrieved by shooter.
Carcasses will be disposed of in accordance with depredation permit conditions.

4. No harassment or bird removal activities will be conducted outside the perimeter
fence unless non-lethal harassment is approved by PDA at specific key locations. Non-
lethal harassment is recommended at identified turkey “hot spots” located outside the
perimeter fence. Should PDA provide WS authority to conduct non-lethal harassment
activities at these sites in the future, they will be incorporated into the project
monitoring and harassment protocol.

5. Asrequested by PDA, WS may remove resident mammals including; coyotes,
foxes, raccoons, skunks, beaver, deer and woodchucks by harassment, shooting, snares,
trapping, or the use of gas cartridges as needed during the calendar year.

6. WS AWCS’s will be badged or accompanied by a badged escort.

7. WS will supply all bird harassment and removal materials. The AWCS vehicle will
be properly identified in accordance with established protocols and maintain appropriate
materials for proper communication with the Air Traffic Control Tower,

8. Wildlife Services will provide bird harassment training as required of Pease
personnel.

9. The AWCS will record and submit the date, location and number of pyrotechnics,
live rounds and species of birds harassed or removed.

10. All bird removal activities will be conducted in accordance with the applicable
Federal or State permit. Wildlife Services will assist Pease in renewing or amending if
necessary the appropriate USFWS or State depredation permit.

11. Wildlife Services will implement additional non-lethal methods that have shown
promise for use in frightening or repelling large birds. Techniques may include: 1) the
hand held Avian Dissuader laser, 2) strategically placed Scare Windmills, and 3) Methyl
Anthranilate (artificial grape flavoring food additive) sprayed at sections along the
perimeter fence.

12. Wildlife Services will provide two annual wildlife hazard trainings classes per
year.

13. A Wildlife Services representative will be a member of and attend the quarterly
wildlife working group meetings.



14. Wildlife Services will provide PDA and other interested parties a summary report
including recommendations of integrated harassment activities.

Effective Dates

The cooperative agreement shall become effective on 1/1/2016, and shall expire on
12/31/16.



ATTACHMENT B
FINANCIAL PLAN
Project Financial Plan For The Conduct of an Integrated Turkey
Harassment and Monitoring Project Under a Cooperative Agreement
between
The Pease Development Authority (PDA)
and
USDA, APHIS, Wildlife Services (WS)

WILDLIFE DAMAGE MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES CONDUCTED FROM 1/1/2016-

12/31/2016

PersSOnNEl COSES .ueuvnininit ittt ettt e e e e e e a e $12,519.60
Viehivle UBBEO «vvssvumunivsnmmmvs sy ooy s o s T a8 050 55 655 S B0 i s e mrmean $ 1,304.00
Supplies/EQUIPIMENE .........uvviiiiiiiiiiiiee e e $ 615.00
Subtotal (Direct COSS) ...uuvvuvririeriinieeiieerie e e s e es e $14,438.60
PO0LEd JOD €St .ttt e $1,588.25
PIOBTAITY BDDOITE 105055 505 55,00 0000 Lo e i s e 2 B A M S 10 $2,331.83

i 3L 3 1§ CJRR—————— $18,358.68

Activities will be conducted with regular and overtime hours worked as necessary to
accomplish the objectives of the program.

The distribution of the Budget from this project Financial Plan may vary as necessary to
accomplish the purpose of this Agreement but may not exceed the TOTAL COST of

$18,358.68

Financial Point of Contact

PDA: Kim William Hopper (603) 433-6536

APHIS, WS: Jane Tuttle (603) 223-6832




> T

=
n
m

z
-
m
o]
b4
>

o
>m
M=
ol 4
oC|>

il B
g
-m
<z

-y -

MOTION

Director Preston:

The PDA Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director

a. enter into a contract amendment with Greenman - Pedersen, Inc.
in the amount of $14,100 for production of the final design
package for the Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (“PSM")
Terminal Restroom Improvements project; and

b. enter into a contract with Hoyle, Tanner & Associates, Inc., PDA’s
airport consultant, for AIP grant administration tasks related to
the restroom project;

all in accordance with the memorandum of Maria J. Stowell, P.E. Manager,
Engineering, dated January 12, 2016 attached hereto.

Note: Roll call vote required.

N:\RESOLVES\PSMBathroom0116.wpd

TAKING YOU THERE



.
PEASE

INTERNATIONAL
DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY
MEMORANDUM

To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director B Lot

From: Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Manager, Engineeringum
Date: January 12, 2016

Subject: PSM Terminal Restroom Improvements

Last May, the Board of Directors approved $47,850 to redesign the PSM terminal restrooms to provide
additional facilities to passengers. This amount included work by Greenman - Pedersen, Inc. and JSA
Architects (GPI/JSA) and a contingency. Since that time, a number of different options were explored to
maximize the service potential of the restrooms throughout the terminal. The various options included:
increasing the fixture count in the restrooms on the lower level and the old portion of the terminal;
increasing the fixture count in the non-sterile area on the main level near Customs; providing dual points
of access to restrooms to increase flexibility of use; and, providing unisex restrooms in the sterile and non-

sterile areas.

Each of the options considered was presented to personnel from Customs and TSA because approval from
these agencies is critical to passenger screening operations. While consideration of the various options
consumed unanticipated time and resources, all parties ultimately reached agreement on a concept for
the project that best serves the needs of the public and security agencies. (See attached plans.)
Additionally, we were able to explore the question of grant funding and found that the proposed work is
eligible under the Airport Improvement Program (AIP).

To date we have spent $34,528.80 for architectural consulting services. The services included work to
explore the various alternatives explained above, a cost estimate, value engineering, and partial design
drawings. To move forward as an AIP project, we will need GPI/JSA to produce the final design package
and we will need PDA’s airport consultant, Hoyle, Tanner & Associates (HTA), to provide grant
administration tasks. Both consultants have submitted proposals. GPI/JSA’s proposed fee is $14,100 and
HTA’s is $18,600.

Upon completion of the design we will publicly bid the work and after selecting a contractor we will
submit a grant application. We expect that the demolition and construction work will cost in excess of
$400,000.

At this time, I am seeking approval to amend the GPI/JSA contract amount and to enter into a contract
with HTA in the amounts identified. We anticipate that 95% of all the costs incurred will be reimbursed
to PDA through the grant.

N:\ENGINEER\Board Memos\2016\PSM Restrooms.docx

TAKING YOU THERE



;e
& AL — =
sl ESE =
t“%ﬂ‘wc o o :lo b
] I]]n L o i 7
I | L
B—1

N
% -

QIIaInin

INSTALL POCKET DOOR
WITH LOCK AND KEY

%\ \REVEﬂsi DOOR SWING

PSM Terminal - Main Level Security Inprovements DESIGNED BY: MRM DATE: 113/16  SCALE: 1/32"=1'

»}z PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY S8 BTERNATIONAL BRIV, BORTSBUTH, HIT T3

r\engineer\cad fles\psn\psn bhprovenents




RELOCATE DOORS AND
ACCESS CONTROL

— EXISTG BACILITIES
-FoR
- BABGALE CIAIM AREA

’_

WOMEN
ExtstiNG FACILITIES J
FOR screeNeD 10
PaSENGERS 1<\
E Men (
[is] 53]

g

e

g INSTALL NEWY WALL
lj i

INSTALL ACCESS
/ CONTROL
O

O

S dle

T

PSM Terminal - Lower Level Security Improvements

DESIGNED BY: MRM DATE: 1/13/16 SCALE: 3/64"=1"

>>- PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

55 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE, PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801

r\ergineer\cad fles\psn\psn bprovinents



wWeMeENS RooM

FIXTURE COUNT
INCREASES

ERoM 2 To Il -

MECHANICAL ELECTRICAL
ROOM ROOM

DOMESTIC
DEPARTURE
LOUNGE
01 PREP
KITCHEN
u] @

-MENS RooM FIXTURE

COUNT INCREASES
FRom % T0 8

R
e
1]
=
=

ORRIDOR
m

F——

' DAGHAGE CLAIM AREA
FMTURE CouNY. MAINTAINED
_AT 5 EACH

DOMESTIC
BAGGAGE
CLAIM

[ ]

DOMESTIC
BAGGAGE
HANDLING
=} [+
e
+] Le]

PRINT IS SCALED TO FIT @

e

” LOWER LEVEL RESTROOMS E‘
PEASE PSWMTOILET RENOVATIONS DECEMBER 15, 2015

INTERNATIONAL
PEASE OIVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

ARCRITECTS
INTERIORS



&\
AS

NTE 10

A AL
OPMENT

EN
ORITY

x|z
o=

ER
DEVE
AUT

MOTION

Director Bohenko:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors authorizes the
Executive Director to:

a. terminate the current contract with Provider Power, LLC for the
supply of electricity; and

b. renegotiate the terms of the contract and execute a new contract
with Provider Power, LLC;

subject to PDA being offered a more favorable supply rate; all in accordance
with the memorandum of Irv Canner, dated January 15, 2016 attached

hereto.

Note: Roll Call Vote required.

N:\RESOLVES\Electricity0116.wpd

TAKING YOU THERE



-

PEASE

INTERNATIONAL

DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY
MEMORANDUM
Date: January 15, 2016
To: David Mullen- Executive Director

From: Irv Canner- Director of Finance

Subject:  Electricity Service Provider

In anticipation of increasing electrical rates, PDA entered into a 26 month fixed rate Generation Service
Supply Agreement with Provider Power LLC (d/b/a/ ENH Power) in September of 2014 at the contracted
price of $0.097 / kWh. To date this has resulted in cost savings of approximately $25,000. Given the
rapidly changing rate environment of the energy market, I have initiated preliminary discussions with
Provider Power LLC to evaluate current day pricing options to determine if it would be prudent to
terminate our existing Agreement.

The dynamics of today’s energy market may support a change as the current rates are moving lower, now
under $0.085 / kWh. With our annual electricity consumption projected to be in excess of 3.7 million
/kWh a revised rate should result in further annual savings.

The rate environment is highly sensitive, potentially changing from hour to hour. Accordingly, PDA
needs to be positioned to lock into an agreement within a 24 hour period once PDA is provided with an
advantageous market quote.

To take advantage of the potential rate reductions, please request Board authority at the January 21%,
2016 meeting to terminate and renegotiate the current electricity supplier contract, as the situation may
warrant subject, however, to the rate being more favorable than the current rate.

P:AMEMOS.MHG\ENHpowerMemo011516.wpd

TAKING YOU THERE



-

E

-0
>
(p)]
m

o
»m
c<
—Mi=
™ |=
o%|>
vl
=
—-m
<z
=1 B

MOTION

Director Loughlin:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby authorizes
the Executive Director to enter into a contract with Liberty Chevrolet of
Wakefield, MA in an amount not to exceed $64,533.00 for the purchase of
one electrician’s van; all in accordance with the memorandum from Joseph
McPherson, Facilities Resource Manager, dated January 12, 2016 attached
hereto.

Note: Roll Call Vote required

N:\RESOLVES\ElectricVan0116.wpd

TAKING YOU THERE



Memo

To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director

From: Joseph W. McPherson, Facilities Resource Manager
Subject: Airport Electrician’s-Vehicle Purchase

Date: January 12, 2016

Continuing with the PDA’s Vehicle Replacement Schedule, I budgeted $60,000 to
replace the 2001 Ford, panel-body style vehicle that has been utilized as the Airport
Electrician’s Vehicle since it was purchased.

Specifications were written and ads were published in the local newspapers as well as the
Manchester Union Leader. The specs called for a 1-ton chassis cab with a panel body and
9 ft. reversible snow plow. Two qualified bids were received and are as follows:

Liberty Chevrolet, Wakefield, MA $64,533.00

Mirak Chevrolet, Arlington, MA $69,980.00

Given that Liberty Chevrolet is the lowest qualified bid, I am requesting you seek
authorization from the PDA Board, to enter into a contract with them for the amount of

$64,533.00, to supply the PDA with a vehicle meeting the specification advertised. The
2001 Vehicle being replaced will be advertised and sold to highest bidder.



=0

I Al
Y
|
|
|
\

o]
z

v]
S m

<
5"“ :um
TM|=
oz >
=
ZnleN
<z
Z|1zrm

MOTION

Director Torr:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby authorizes
the Executive Director to enter into a Memorandum of Agreement with the
Federal Aviation Administration (“FAA") for the construction, operation, and
maintenance of FAA owned navigation, communication and weather aid
facilities at Skyhaven Airport on substantially the same terms and conditions
set forth in the attached "No Cost Land on Airport Memorandum of
Agreement” ; and otherwise in accordance with the memorandum of Andrew
B. Pomeroy, Airport Operations Supervisor, dated January 13, 2016 attached
hereto.

Note: Roll Call Vote required.

N:\RESOLVES\SkyhavenFAAQ116.wpd

P TAKING YOU THERE



INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

TO: ' DAVID R. MULLEN, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (B’V\/

FROM: ANDREW B. POMEROY, AIRPORT OPERATIONS SUPERVISOR @
SUBJECT: FAA MOA RENEWAL FOR SKYHAVEN NAVIGATIONAL AND WEATHER AIDS
DATE: 1/13/2016

CC: KIM W. HOPPER, A A.E., AIRPORT MANAGER

The Pease Development Authority, Airport Management Department recommends that the Board of
Directors renew the long standing Memorandum of Agreement, MOA No: DTFAEN-16-L-00070
attached hereto, under substantially the same terms and conditions as the previous agreement.

This MOA renews the Federal Aviation Administration’s access to the aitfield to continue to operate,
maintain and/or modify the FAA owned Automated Surface Observation System (ASOS) weather
station and Precision Approach Path Indicator (PAPI) navigational aid. Both items are critical
components for aircraft operations at the Skyhaven Airport during Instrument Meteorological
Conditions (IMC) and at night.



NO COST LAND ON AIRPORT MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

MOA No: DTFAEN-16-L-00070

Geographical Location: Rochester, NH

This agreement is made and entered into by the Pease Development Authority,
hereinafter referred to as PDA, for itself, its successors and assigns, and the Federal
Aviation Administration, hereinafter referred to as the FAA.

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the parties listed above have entered into an Airport Improvement Grant
Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the parties listed above have entered into an agreement providing for the
construction, operation, and maintenance of FAA owned navigation, communication and
weather aids for the support of Air Traffic Operations; and

WHEREAS, the parties consider it desirable to work in cooperation with each other in
the technical installation and operation of air navigational aids; and

WHEREAS, both parties agreed the establishment, operation, and maintenance of
systems for air traffic control, navigation, communication, and weather reporting is in the

primary interest of safety and direct support of the ongoing operation of the Skyhaven
Airport.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties mutually agree as follows:

1. TERMS AND CONDITIONS (Jan 12):

It is mutually understood and agreed that the Airport requires FAA navigation aid
facilities in order to operate their business and that the FAA requires navigation,
communication and weather aid facilities at the Airport in order to support Air Traffic
Operations. Thus, in the interest of both parties it is hereby agreed that the Airport will
allow the FAA to construct, operate, and maintain FAA owned navigation,
communication and weather aid facilities in areas on the Airport that have been mutually
determined and agreed upon for the term commencing on October 1, 2016 and
continuing through September 30, 2036. The FAA can terminate this agreement, in
whole or part at any time by giving at least (60) day’s notice in writing. Said notice shall
be sent by certified or registered mail.

1.3.3 No Cost Land on an Airport Memorandum of Agreement
Revised January 2012
OMB Control No. 2120-0595 Pg. 1



A. Together with a right-of-way for ingress to and egress from the premises; a
right-of-way for establishing and maintaining pole lines or under ground lines for
extending electrical power and/or telecommunications lines to the premises; including a
right-of-way for subsurface power, communication and/or water lines to the premises; all
rights-of-way to be over the area referred to as Skyhaven Airport, to be routed
reasonably determined to be the most convenient to the FAA and as not to interfere with
Airport operations. The PDA shall have the right to review and comment on plans
covering access and utility rights-of-way under this paragraph.

B. And the right to grading, conditioning, and installing drainage facilities,
seeding the soil of the premises, and removing all obstructions from the premises which
may constitute a hindrance to the establishment and maintenance of navigational aid
systems. The PDA shall have the right to review and comment on plans covering work
permitted under this paragraph.

C. And the rights to make alterations, attach fixtures, and erect additions,
structures or signs, in direct support of the Airport. The PDA shall have the right to
review and comment on plans covering work permitted under this paragraph.

D. And the right to park, without cost, all official and privately owned vehicles
used for the maintenance and operation of the air navigational facilities. Parking shall be
provided adjacent to the navigational aid facility or as near as possible without interfering
with the operation of the Airport.

2. CONSIDERATION (Aug- 02):

The FAA shall pay the Airport no monetary consideration, it being mutually agreed that
the rights extended to the FAA herein are in consideration of the obligations assumed by
the FAA in its establishment, operation, and maintenance of navigational aid facilities
upon the premises.

3. PURPOSE (Apr-05):

It is understood and agreed that the use of the herein described premises, known as
Skyhaven Airport, shall be related to the FAA’s activities in support of Air Traffic
operations.

4. FAA FACILITIES (Apr-05)

The FAA facilities covered by this agreement are identified on the most current approved
Airport Layout Plan (ALP) and/or other pertinent drawings that are made part of this
agreement by reference and shown on the attached FAA “List of Facilities”.

1.3.3 No Cost Land on an Airport Memorandum of Agreement
Revised January 2012
OMB Control No. 2120-0595 Pg. 2



S. TITLE TO IMPROVEMENTS (Apr-05):

Title to the improvements constructed for use by the FAA during the life of this
agreement shall be in the name of the FAA.

6. HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCE CONTAMINATION (May-00);

The FAA agrees to remediate, at its sole cost, all hazardous substance contamination on
the leased premises that is found to have occurred as a direct result of the installation,
operation and/or maintenance of the FAA’s facilities. Except as otherwise provided
herein and to the extent permitted by law and not otherwise prohibited by New
Hampshire HB 570 Section 113:13 (2009) the Lessor agrees to remediate at its sole cost,
any and all other hazardous substance contamination found on the leased premises. The
FAA shall be liable for all costs, liabilities and/or claims by third parties that arise out of
hazardous contamination found on the leased premises only if directly attributable to the
installation, operation and/or maintenance of the FAA’s navigational facilities at
Skyhaven Airport.

7. INTERFERENCE WITH FAA OPERATIONS (Oct-96):

The PDA agrees not to erect or allow to be erected any structure or obstruction of
whatsoever kind or nature within the Airport’s boundaries that may interfere with the
proper operation of the navigational aid facilities installed by the FAA, as it is not in the
best interest of the Airport or the FAA.

8. FUNDING RESPONSIBILITY FOR FAA FACILITIES (Oct-96):

The PDA agrees that any relocation, replacement, or modification of any existing or
future FAA’s navigational aid systems made necessary by Airport improvements or
changes, which interferes with the technical and/or operational characteristics of the
facility, will be at the expense of the PDA with the exception of any such improvements
or changes which are made at the request of the FAA. In the event such relocations,
replacements, or modifications are necessary due to causes not attributable to either the
PDA or the FAA, funding responsibility shall be determined by mutual agreement
between the parties.

9. NON-RESTORATION (Oct-96):

Itis hereby agreed between the parties, that upon termination of its occupancy, the FAA
shall have no obligation to restore and/or rehabilitate, either wholly or partially, the
property which is the subject matter of this agreement. It is further agreed that the FAA
may abandon in place any or all of the structures and equipment installed in or located
upon said property by the FAA during its tenure. Such abandoned equipment shall
become the property of the PDA.

1.3.3 No Cost Land on an Airport Memorandum of Agreement
Revised January 2012
OMB Control No. 2120-0595 Pg. 3



10. NOTICES (Oct-96):

All notices/correspondence shall be in writing, reference the Agreement number, and be
addressed as follows:

AIRPORT:
Pease Development Authority, SS International Drive, Portsmouth, NH 03801

FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION:S

Federal Aviation Administration, Attention: Real Estate Contracting Officer,
ALOG620-BOS, New England Executive Park, Burlington, MA 01803

11. Previous Lease(s)/Agreement(s)

This agreement supersedes Land Lease number DTFANE-07-L-00003, Land Lease
number DTFAEN-10-L-00094 is hereby terminated.

12. The following clauses are incorporated by reference: The full text of these clauses
can be found via Internet at site http://fast.faa.gov/ and finding the form “Land On-
Airport Lease”.

1. OFFICIALS NOT TO BENEFIT (10/96)
2. COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES (8/02)
3. ANTI-KICKBACK (10/96)

1.3.3 No Cost Land on an Airport Memorandum of Agreement
Revised January 2012
OMB Control No. 2120-0595 Pg. 4



13. SIGNATURES (Apr-04):

The PDA and the FAA hereby agree to the provisions outlined in this agreement as
indicated by the signatures herein below of their duly authorized representative (s). This
agreement is effective upon the date of signature by the last party thereof.

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION

By: By:
Title: Title:
Date: Date:

1.3.3 No Cost Land on an Airport Memorandum of Agreement
Revised January 2012
OMB Control No. 2120-0595 Pg. 5



Dated OCTOBER 1, 2016

List of Facilities

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
DTFAEN-16-L-00070
SKYHAVEN AIRPORT

GSACont:ol

Number

Comments

1.3.3 No Cost Land on an Airport Memorandum of Agreement
Revised January 2012
OMB Control No. 2120-0595 - Pg. 6



o\
SE

PEAS

>

NTE A
MEN

D E
RITY

el Rl
-]~

A
0}
0

—Mi=
x|z

EV
AU

MOTION
Director Allard:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby authorizes
the Executive Director to execute a Right of Entry with IAC Chapter 35 - New
England Aerobatic Club for airplane aerobatic practice at Skyhaven Airport;
all on substantially similar terms and conditions set forth in the Right of
Entry dated January 22, 2016, and attached hereto.

Note: Roll Call vote required

N:\RESOLVES\ROENEAC0116.wpd

JL) TAKING YOU THERE



-
AS

INTERNATION
DEVELOPME
AUTHORIT

<z
S ’:I'I'l

January 22, 2016

IAC Chapter 35

New England Aerobatic Club
c/o Farrell Woods

162 Bush Hill Road

Hudson, NH 03051

Re: Right of Entry for Use of Portion of Skyhaven Airport, Rochester, New Hampshire
New England Aerobatic Club

Dear Mr. Woods:

This Right of Entry will authorize the New England Aerobatic Club (Chapter 35 - International
Aerobatic Club) ("NEAC") to use the facilities at Skyhaven Airport (the “Premises™) for the purpose of
conducting, at its sole risk, airplane aerobatic practice sessions within the aerial practice box area approved
of by the Federal Aviation Administration (“FAA”), and for no other use without the express written consent
of the Pease Development Authority (“PDA”). This Right of Entry shall be valid through December 31,
2016 between the hours of 8:00 am through 6:00 pm and shall terminate at 6:00 p.m. on December 31,2016
(the "Term"). The use, occupation and maintenance of the Premises shall be: (a) without cost or expense to
the PDA; (b) subject to the general supervision and approval of the PDA; (c) subject to the terms and
conditions of the Certificate of Waiver or Authorization issued by the FAA’s Flight Standards District Office
in Portland, ME, and (d) subject to such rules and regulations as the PDA may prescribe from time to time.

In the event NEAC is authorized to use the Premises on a Sunday during the Term of this Right of
Entry, permission will be granted subject to the requirement that it may not commence practice sessions prior
to 12:00 p.m. and must conclude such sessions by 6:00 p.m. This Right of Entry shall terminate at 6:00 pm
on the date each practice is held.

1. NEAC understands and acknowledges that for each specific period of use requested during
the Term, NEAC shall coordinate with and shall obtain prior approval from the Pease Development Authority
Airport Management Department for use of the Premises.

NEAC understands and agrees that it will not enter the premises or conduct events during the Term
of this Right of Entry without the express prior approval of PDA.

2, NEAC understands and acknowledges that this Right of Entry: (a) allows only temporary
use of the facilities; (b) is granted on a non-exclusive basis; and (¢) may be revoked at will by PDA or
terminated at will and that PDA need not state a reason for any such revocation or termination. The use of
the Premises shall be orderly and efficient, shall not constitute a nuisance and shall not cause disruption to
other Airport activities.

3. PDA shall not be responsible for damages to property or injuries to persons which may

TAKING YOU THERE



Farrell Woods, President
IAC Chapter 34

New England Aerobatic Club
January 22, 2016

Page 2

arise from or be attributable or incident to the condition or state or repair of the Premises, or the use and
occupation thereof, or for damages to the property or injuries to the person of NEAC’s officers, agents,
servants or employees, or others who may be on the Premises at their invitation or the invitation of any one
of them, if such damage is caused by the negligence of NEAC.

3. NEAC's agreement herein that any use of the Premises is at its sole risk and that its signature
below constitutes its agreement to assume full responsibility for any and all risks of loss or damage to
property and injury or death to persons by reason of or incident to its entry or the entry by any of its
employees, agents or contractors upon the premises and/or the exercise of any of the authorities granted
herein, if such loss, damage or injury is caused by the negligence of NEAC. NEAC expressly waives all
claims against the Pease Development Authority for any such loss, damage, personal injury or death caused
by or occurring as a consequence of NEAC's use of the Premises or the conduct of activities or the
performance of responsibilities under this authorization unless such loss, damage, injury or death is caused
by the negligence of the Pease Development Authority. NEAC further agrees to indemnify, save, hold
harmless, and defend the Pease Development Authority, its officers, board members, agents and employees,
fromand against all suits, claims, demands or actions, liabilities, judgements, costs and attorney's fees arising
out of NEAC 's use of the Premises or any activities conducted or undertaken in connection with or pursuant
to this authorization unless caused by the sole negligence of the Pease Development Authority.

4, NEAC providing to the Pease Development Authority satisfactory evidence of commercial
general liability or aviation liability insurance to a limit of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00)
per occurrence, naming the Pease Development Authority as an additional insured.

Each such policy or certificate therefor issued by the insurer shall to the extent obtainable contain
(I) a provision that no act or omission of any employee, officer or agent of NEAC which would otherwise
result in forfeiture or reduction of the insurance therein provided shall affect or limit the obligation of the
insurance company to pay the amount of any loss sustained, (ii) an agreement by the insurer that such policy
shall not be canceled without at least thirty (30) days prior written notice by registered mail to Pease
Development Authority (except in situations involving the non-payment of a premium, in which case a 10
day notice will be accepted), (iii) a provision that any liability insurance coverage required to be carried by
NEAC shall be primary and non-contributing with respect to any insurance carried by PDA and (iv) a waiver
of subrogation in favor of the Pease Development Authority.

Inaddition to the insurance coverage required to be provided in this Section 4, each event participant
shall carry liability insurance as required by the Official IAC (International Aerobatic Club) Contest Rules
and shall bring proof of that insurance to Skyhaven Airport as a condition of participating in the IAC 35
aerobatics activity. NEAC shall be solely responsible for ensuring that event participants comply with this
provision,

5. NEAC shall coordinate activities with the on-duty airport attendant on Friday prior to each
scheduled practice event and shall otherwise coordinate practice events with the Airport Manager or his
designee prior to commencement of each aerobatic practice session.

6. NEAC shall secure and provide PDA with proof of all required permits and waivers from



Farrell Woods, President
IAC Chapter 34

New England Aerobatic Club
January 22, 2016

Page 3

the FAA and comply with all FAA and other federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations, which apply
to the activities contemplated under this Right of Entry, including rules and regulations promulgated by PDA.
NEAC shall pay to PDA an amount equal to all fines levied by the FAA (or any other federal or state entity
having jurisdiction) against PDA for any breach of FAA or other federal or state requirements by NEAC or
any of its contractors, agents, servants or invitees.

T NEAC’s agreement to follow the operational guidelines and restrictions set forth in Exhibit
A which is attached hereto and incorporated into and made a part of this Right of Entry.

8. NEAC’s agreement to schedule regular and periodic breaks between practice sessions so
as to mitigate the effect of noise on the surrounding community arising from its use of the airspace above
and adjacent to Skyhaven Airport.

Please indicate by your signature or the signature of a duly authorized representative, the consent
of NEAC to the terms of this Right of Entry and return the same to me along with proof of insurance
coverages in advance of the first practice session,

Very truly yours,

David R. Mullen
Executive Director

Agreed and accepted this __ day of , 2016

New England Aerobatic Club

By:

Duly Authorized
Its:

President

cc: K. William Hopper, Airport Manager
Mark H. Gardner, Deputy General Counsel

PASKYHAVEN\NEAC\WNEACROE2016wpd.wpd



EXHIBIT A

Operational Guidelines and Restrictions




'OPERATIONAL GUIDELINES AND RESTRICTIONS

NEW ENGLAND AEROBATIC CLUB
RIGHT OF ENTRY

e Aircraft holding should be at least 3,600’
Allow breaks in flying to ease the noise on local community
e If the Sunday rain dated is necessary, no flying before Noon so as to not disrupt church services



-
PEASE

AIRPOR 36 Airline Ave. Portsmouth, NH 03801
MANAGEMENT 603.433.6536

Memorandum

To: Kim W. Hopper, A.A.E., Airport Manager

From: Sandra McDonough, Airport Operations/Community Liaison <™
Date: 1/11/2016

Subj: Noise Report for December 2015

For the calendar month of December 2015, we received a total of 29 inquiries.

Out of the 29 inquiries, 15 of them were helicopter related and are presumed to be Seacoast
Helicopters based in Portsmouth. The remaining 14 inquiries were fixed wing related: Nine
inquiries were non-based military KC-10s, three were based military KC135s, a non-based
commercial DC-9 and an unknown piston aircraft.

The 29 inquiries were generated by 7 residences with two residences accounting for 22 of the
inquiries (76%). Portsmouth had 15 inquiries followed by Newmarket with 9, Durham and
Greenland 2 and Kittery Point with one.

Attached is the Noise Report for December 2015.

OOO0O TAKING YOU THERE



LIOd T 9IM=M "LINQ JAMOd AIVTIIXNV=NdV
“LINN 33MO0d ANNOYO=NdD ‘INTISNVIL=L ‘XAV LITIN=IA ‘NV ITIAID=D ‘SONIANVT 0D ANV HONOL=TOL ‘MO1
LHOITAYIAO=TO “ASION LHOITIYTAO=NO ‘NdD/NdV ADNVNIAINIVIN=XI ‘dN-NOH Wd=4d ‘dN-NNJ WV=3V AT AdAL

G jo | adey

9107 "€[ Arenuer *Aepsaupom

HN "1MJBlman

97Tl B AL matakeg
1/C1 U0 [8] R|[B2 305 "UIDIUOD DUILS I Yiiam J2[[LD 1eadoy S00-OM T TOL [81 IsqunN qf crer  srowTt 8
0€:EL |hun O0:T] woy eae 3 Ut Sururen
212 ISBE 2010,] UV AUMDIN WO S,01 DN .
A oama teys pauterdxs yInouogapw HN En_t.zc
DYIm SID[[LD ) Yitm ¥ods pue proy Aeg
004138 [/T1 [182 343 PAWMaL g3nouo(op (doIs s 01-0 Y1 [1is udtm S0IOM T 101 01THqunN a1 0:€l  sroiTl L
HN “0MJCWAMIN
A0 AU maiakeg
[/1 uo 8] 2o uum "WIROUOD JUIES JU) LM JI[[ 8D ﬂnuaum S00-0M ¢ TOL 181 JoqunN (] 60-€1  Stovel 9
HN "PIEWmMIN
9Tl B DAL matakeg]
I/T1 U0 | JR{[EI 235 "WDIUOD SWES AU} {IIM 13[[ED 180doy S01-OM T TOL 181 12quinN (1 L0€l  stow/TL €
HN "2yaewmdN
97:71 B daL(] mdtakey
1/T1 U0 [ 8] [[BD 225 "WIIDUOD DWES AU} Yiim Ja[|ed yeadoy S01-0M T 0L 181 32qunN (] A0 S (0ol Vi B 4
HN “193deumon
S A0 AU mdakeg
[/T1 U0 [S[ OB 20 "WIDUOD SWIELS DY YU m J2[[E2 1eadoy S01-OM T 1oL [81 JoqunN (1 6€Tl  S10TLETL €
HN “IPNJEUWMIN
‘0Tzl B ALY mIlAARY
[/T] U0 [8] R[[LI VG "WIIUGD DWES I YlIm J3[[ed Jeadoy S01-DM T TOL [81 JoquinN (] L&zl szt ¢
'St AJ[EMOE
1t uey 1omo] Jurdyy st eyl wods 3 dyew dwoy HN “PMIEmaN
os|e Aeul yaiym pnoj A1da oS|[e S| S1 Joy Bunadie a1e saueyd oyp s9IEIS Y "YSEID ¥ JO Anpiqeqod )
A[[emoe 1 uey Hmoj seadde 1 oxew Avw 1223 © 51 2191 pue Auadoud 1oy 01 950(0 A|snowduep AL ML
Yorym yeasare ddaef Ada B SLQO[ I o4 Uy 2Je YrIDIY "WIDIU0D JWES dY) Y 1[[ed 1eaday SO0I-ONT 101 18] Bquinn ) Yatdl SI0T/1/T1 1
dn mojjo4 SIAIEIIBN JJeroary adA] UoOnBULIOJU] J3[[8D) dwny Aeq 4

SI/TE/CT OV SI/I/T] -poradd aY) 40,]

307 140d2Y 2S10N V(I d



LIOdTI 9aM=M ‘LINN dAMOd AAVTIIXNV=NdV
‘LINN ¥IAO0d ANNOWYOD=AdD ‘INFAISNVIL=L ‘AAVLITIN=IA ‘NVITIAID=D ‘SONIANVT 0O ANV HONOL=T9L ‘A0
LHOITIHIIAO=T0 “ASION LHOI'THIIAO=NO ‘Nd9O/NdV IDNVNAINIVIA=XI ‘dN-NQH Wd=4d ‘dN-NN¥Y WV=4V AT AdAL

§Jo gadey

‘suone[n3al oy wr s>3ueys aumng Aue
10} siurepdwod 1oy 3urd33of stayg -asnoy
10y 1240 3utk]y dois 03 snoy sdosijay

[Apdnuge spua [[ea]—;08

01 UoNDAIIP A 1L §] "daneIwdsaidal anysduiey maN noge
Asow pay|el A3y “Sunaaw S1 01 JudMm | UDYA DULB UL

w [ []e2 0} Oym MmOouy SN 19 ISBIJ "GT[ 1 I “ulede pesyiaao
oM 1snl2u0 1sE] 21| 1240 puE 1040 03 A3U1 1nq U BYNg
1,US20D M ‘2U0T 2UB SIAED| I} 2SNELIDQ QAT *PISO[ SMOPUIAL

AW wog Anry
PEOY YoAN 192010

910 "€1 Aenuer *Aepsoupop

341 dY1| PINOM PUEB PIIBNSNLY ALDA SI Yua udAD “A[a [ “Azeio § 11 *s191d0o1[ay pas Sy AR “Julog amdootpy
DD "G/TT UO 23 pawimal y3nouogan Ay Py ¥0IN N2001) woly Sul[ea XNXX S!Sy SIAL uosulqoy NO 80T JaqunN (1 6C:11 S10T/S/Tt €I
HN "{pnowsuo g
NUBAY ID[[IA
‘AJessooouun SIyoeq ._UHQDU__Dﬂ_.
[[ea e 1eq 1sed 241 Ul pRNEdIpUL SBY JD[E)) a21dostpy Py - LNIVIdWOD ASION pa[iewy uoswIqoy NO 89 equinN g1 £ B 8 SR < 1 rof i B |
. 9Ag-24q yonwe dA nok yuey
‘uo 3utod st siy I8y PI022L UO U 123 01 1uem 1snl | dpranje
MO AIDA 18 PUO( [[HA YUION 2Y4) JOA0 D[0J1D 192p2d & Juiop
S OH "SANUIW ()7 Ul S INOJ SI ST "IDA0 A]J O SO MOy
, =jjey Aaaaa 1snl) ust sty) “ARs 01 pajuea 1snl ] dui[-5311 sy}
2A0QE Y31 § 9y 2$NTIAQ )OS PA0QE §, 3y LB AUB Ul DA
1,UOp | "PUOd [[HA YHUON 243 u0 punose Sutjoaia 1snl *asnoy
OSu0dsdI ON "9/TI U0 XXX N0 JdA0 $3s5Ed IN0J IPTL S O SHINUIY ()T ISE| Y} ULLIIA puT HN “pnowspog
“J 20} a3essow € 12| yInouo(op ol “Junwow siy) ([0 e pouels Juapiout oy | 1dosipy moy )
PICPUEIS B SEM 31 PIIEIS Oy S101d0I[dH pal eyl 1sureSe Juiepdwos e o[y o1 Sulj[ed W | YInowsuo waag mny
15E00E3g (1M dn pamoj|of y3nouoo Ul 192408 Iy uo dA1] | “Fulj[es X XXX S Syl SIA sdoatay NO L1 42quinN (1 oF0L SI0TSTT 1L
“asi0u uaquie
$SD| S1 2121 udgM dwn © 1e uonendo
STM PUE PYEIDUT J2MDU U] PUNOS 210 HN SsEwamon
SEUIT £6- (] QUL POUDPISDL SI[|ED -
AY) JBAU 10U SEM YIIYM ¢ Aemuny paaLue DAL(] MIIAARY
W puE Y3ty g pYIL) YINOUOCIO  TUONENS sno@BuR dwoy 1y 03 Anwrxosd 250[d Ul iy £6-20 NO 181 J2qunN (] PETT  SI0TETL 01
HN “03ITmdN
97Tl B AL mI1AAERY
[/T1 U0 [S] DT VG WADLOD IWES I UM JA{|ED 1edddy S00-OM € DL 181 daquinN (] 0TEl  s10TITL 6
dn aofjog SPALELIRN JjRIdaATY adAy uonewIojuy I|eD duuly, aNeq #

SI/LETT O CI/I/CT -PoLad oYl 40

307 140d2y 2S10N V(I d



LIOdTT 9aM=M ‘LINAQ JAMOd AIVTIIXNV=1dV
“LINN ¥3A0d ANAOID=NdD ‘LNFISNVIL=L ‘AAVLITIN=IA ‘NVITIAID=D ‘SONIANVT OO ANV HONOL=TOL ‘MO1
LHOI'TAHIAO=T0 “ASION LHOITIYIAO=NO ‘Nd9/AdV AINVNILNIVIN=XI ‘dN-NAd Wd=¥d ‘d0A-NQIJ WV=4V AT 4dAL

§Jjo gadeyg 9107 "§1 Atenuef “Kepsaupapy,

yeiaan<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>